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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the 'Directors’) of BCI
Group Holdings Limited (the "Company", together with its
subsidiaries, the "Group"', "we" or "our") collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing
Rules’) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the "Board") of Directors of the
Company, | am pleased to present the first annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 May 2017.

On 7 April 2017 (the "Listing Date"), the shares of the Company
were successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the "Listing"). On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this
opportunity to express our deep gratitude to all parties who
have assisted us in building our business over the years and
during the preparation process of the Listing. The fund raised
from the placing and public offer of shares of the Company will
be used to promote the future development of the Group.

We are a food and beverage and entertainment group based
in Hong Kong that owns and operates two night entertainment
clubs, namely Volar and Fly; and three restaurants focusing on
Japanese-style curry dishes under our proprietary'Tiger"brand.

During the year ended 31 May 2017 (the "Year" or "2017"), the
Group achieved an increase in revenue of approximately 8.2%
from approximately HK$88.9 million for the year ended 31 May
2016 (the "Previous Year" or "2016") to approximately HK$96.2
million for the year ended 31 May 2017. The growth was mainly
due to the revenue contribute by Fly to the Group which came
under the Group's operation through acquisition of its operating
company in November 2015 and the revenue from Tiger Curry
& Cafe, which commenced business on 30 July 2015.

To maintain our leading market players in the clubbing market
and further strengthen our business in restaurants operation in
Hong Kong, we will continue to expand and diversify our outlet
network by establishing sports-themed bars and expanding our
restaurant network under our “Tiger” brand, and upgrade our
club facilities.

On behalf of the Board and the management of the Group, |
would like to express my sincere gratitude to all our staff for
their unremitting efforts during the year ended 31 May 2017
and to all shareholders for their full support. | would also like
to express my heartfelt thanks to all shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners for their valuable
support.

Ng Shing Joe Kester

Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 August 2017
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For the year ended 31 May 2017, the Group's revenue was
approximately HK$96.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 8.2% when compared with that for the year
ended 31 May 2016.

The Group recorded a loss and total comprehensive expense for
the year ended 31 May 2017 of approximately HK$9.8 million,
while there was a profit and total comprehensive income of
approximately HK$8.4 million for the year ended 31 May 2016.
Excluding the non-recurring Listing expenses of approximately
HK$15.5 million for the year ended 31 May 2017, the profit and
total comprehensive income would increase to approximately
HK$5.7 million for the year ended 31 May 2017.

The Board did not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 May 2017.
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BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The Group is a food and beverage and entertainment
group based in Hong Kong that owns and operates two
night entertainment clubs, namely Volar and Fly; and three
restaurants focusing on Japanese-style curry dishes under the
proprietary “Tiger” brand. Since the Listing, there has been no
significant change in the business operations of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

For the year ended 31 May 2017 and up to the date of this
report, the Group has been principally engaged in the operation
of clubbing and restaurant business in Hong Kong.

Operation of clubbing business

For the year ended 31 May 2017, the Group strategically
positions two clubs, namely Volar and Fly, to cover different
segments of the night entertainment club market. Volar targets
customers with strong spending power and aims to provide
a premium clubbing experience, while Fly aims to appeal to
the younger white collar professionals and university students
and graduates and provide a high-end clubbing experience.
Leveraging on the success in clubbing business, the Group is
also engaged in organising music-related featured events to
offer music entertainment to its customers. In general, the
Group conducts the overall organisation, ranging from sourcing
of disc jockey (“DJ"), marketing, ticketing and stage design
and set up. Internationally renowned DJs and artists are usually
engaged to perform at these featured events which would
enhance the premium and high-end image of the clubs, increase
customer traffic and increase the overall revenue. The revenue
generated from operation of clubbing business increased by
approximately HK$5.6 million, or approximately 7.7%, from
approximately HK$72.9 million for the year ended 31 May 2016
to approximately HK$78.5 million for the year ended 31 May
2017. Such increase was mainly due to the revenue contributed
by Fly to the Group which came under the Group's operation
through acquisition of its operating company in November 2015.
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Operation of restaurant business

The three “Tiger” branded restaurants aim to provide a
contemporary Japanese dining experience in a relaxing
atmosphere for their customers. Tiger Curry and Tiger Curry
& Cafe are casual dining restaurants while Tiger Curry Jr. is a
quick service restaurant. For the year ended 31 May 2017, the
Group seeks to distinguish itself from other local casual dining
and quick service restaurant concepts by creating food menus
centered on Japanese-style curry dishes yet at the same time
offering a variety of other Japanese dishes with broad appeal.
The revenue generated from operation of restaurant business
increased by approximately HK$1.7 million, or approximately
10.4%, from approximately HK$16.0 million for the year ended
31 May 2016 to approximately HK$17.7 million for the year
ended 31 May 2017. The increase in revenue was primarily
attributable to the revenue from Tiger Curry & Cafe, which
commenced business on 30 July 2015.

Outlook

Looking forward, to maintain our leading market players in
the clubbing market and further strengthen our business in
restaurants operation in Hong Kong, the Group will continue to
expand and diversify our outlet network by establishing sports-
themed bars and expanding our restaurant network under
our “Tiger” brand, and upgrade our club facilities. The Group
ongoing expansion plans will enhance the market share in both
clubbing and restaurant business while the Group will continue
to refine the business strategy to cope with the continuing
challenges.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 May 2017, the Group's revenue was
generated from the operation of clubbing and restaurant
business in Hong Kong. As at 31 May 2017, the Group was
operating two clubs and three restaurants, located in Hong
Kong.

The Group recognised revenue from (a) the clubbing operations
when (i) sales of beverages were delivered; (i) services were
provided or other products were delivered (including tips,
cloakroom fees, photobooth income and rental income from
leasing the club premises for events) to its customers; and (b)
the restaurant operations when food and beverage and other
related service have been rendered.
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The table below sets forth the breakdown of the revenue by
clubbing and restaurant operations for the years ended 31 May
2017 and 2016.

TR RE E2017F N2016F5H8318 1
FEZRSM N EREERE DRIk -

For the year ended 31 May

BE5A3MHILLEE

2017 2016

20174 20164
% of total % of total
HK$'000 revenue HK$'000 revenue
14548 1 2 148
FET B H FETL Bt
Clubbing operations SMEE 78,477 81.6 72,851 82.0
Restaurant operations BEELE 17,687 18.4 16,019 18.0
Total st 96,164 100.0 88,870 100.0

The revenue generated from operation of clubbing business
increased by approximately HK$5.6 million, or approximately
7.7%, from approximately HK$72.9 million for the year ended
31 May 2016 to approximately HK$78.5 million for the year
ended 31 May 2017. Such increase was mainly due to the
revenue contributed by Fly to the Group which came under the
Group's operation through acquisition of its operating company
in November 2015.

The revenue generated from operation of restaurant business
increased by approximately HK$1.7 million, or approximately
10.4%, from approximately HK$16.0 million for the year ended
31 May 2016 to approximately HK$17.7 million for the year
ended 31 May 2017. The increase in revenue was primarily
attributable to the revenue from Tiger Curry & Cafe, which
commenced business on 30 July 2015.

Cost of inventories sold

The cost of inventories sold mainly represents the cost of
beverage and food ingredients used in the Group's clubbing and
restaurant operations. The major beverage and food ingredients
purchased by the Group includes, but is not limited to, champagne,
frozen food, dried food, etc.. The cost of inventories sold was one
of the components of the operating expenses which increased
by approximately HK$0.9 million, or approximately 5.2%, from
approximately HK$18.2 million for the year ended 31 May 2016 to
approximately HK$19.1 million for the year ended 31 May 2017.
The increase was mainly due to the expansion of (i) the clubbing
operations by acquiring Grand Diamond Limited, the operating
company of Fly, in November 2015; and (ii) the restaurant
operations by opening Tiger Curry & Cafe in July 2015.
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Other income and gains

Other income and gains mainly represents the gain on disposal
of property, plant and equipment, management fee income and
bank interest income.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of the other income
and gains for the years ended 31 May 2017 and 2016.

Hitp g A K W38
Hi WA RB R EBREEYE - BELERE
mldas - BIEBERARBITAEUA -

TREHIRE E2017F N2016F5H318 1
FERNEM A KR IZEPA -

For the year ended 31 May

BZE5A31ALEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Gain on disposal of property plant and HEME - BERRED

equipment Wz - 125
Management fee income BEEEIWA 72 432
Interest income FBUA 1 -
Total “BEt 73 557

The other income and gains decreased by approximately HK$0.5
million, or approximately 86.9%, from approximately HK$0.6
million for the year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately
HK$0.1 million for the year ended 31 May 2017. The decrease
was mainly due to (i) the decrease in management fee income;
and (ii) the decrease in gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment where a gain on disposal of a motor vehicle was
realised for the year ended 31 May 2016 while no such disposal
has been realised for the year ended 31 May 2017.

Property rentals and related expenses

Property rentals and related expenses primarily represent
the rental payments under operating leases and property
management fee paid for the club premises, restaurants and
office premises. The property rentals and related expenses
were the largest component of the operating expenses which
increased by approximately HK$2.1 million, or approximately
9.8%, from approximately HK$20.9 million for the year ended
31 May 2016 to approximately HK$23.0 million for the year
ended 31 May 2017. The increase was mainly due to (i) the
property rentals and related expenses incurred by Fly, which
came under the Group's operation through acquisition of its
operating company in November 2015; and (ii) the property
rentals and related expenses incurred by the Group's office
premise.
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Advertising and marketing expenses

Advertising and marketing expenses primarily consist of
advertising and promotional expenses such as the cost of
engaging resident and guest DJs and the expenses incurred
for engaging a public relations company for the provision of
marketing and promotion services to the Group's clubbing and
restaurant operations. The advertising and marketing expenses
increased by approximately HK$0.2 million, or approximately
1.8%, from approximately HK$11.7 million for the year ended 31
May 2016 to approximately HK$11.9 million for the year ended
31 May 2017. The increase was primarily due to the marketing
expenses increased for Fly, which came under our operation
in November 2015, mitigating by the decline of marketing and
promotion services which was gradually performed by our staff
for the year ended 31 May 2017.

Employee benefits expenses

Employee benefits expenses primarily consisted of all salaries
and benefits payable to all employees and staff, including the
executive director, headquarters staff and operational staff in
each outlet. The employee benefits expenses increased by
approximately HK$5.2 million, or approximately 40.1%, from
approximately HK$13.1 million for the year ended 31 May 2016
to approximately HK$18.3 million for the year ended 31 May
2017. The increase in staff costs was mainly due to (i) the
staff costs attributable to Fly which came under the Group's
operation through acquisition of its operating company in
November 2015; (ii) the staff costs attributable to Tiger Curry
& Cafe which commenced business in July 2015; and (iii) the
increase in head office staff costs as a result of the expansion
of the Group's clubbing and restaurant operations and additional
staff after Listing.

Depreciation

Depreciation represents the depreciation charge for property,
plant and equipment, including, among others, leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor
vehicles. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The depreciation
remained relatively stable at approximately HK$4.2 million for
the year ended 31 May 2016 as compared to approximately
HK$4.3 million for the year ended 31 May 2017.

Listing expenses

Listing expenses of approximately HK$15.5 million were
recognised for the year ended 31 May 2017. No such expenses
were incurred for the year ended 31 May 2016.
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Other expenses

Other expenses mainly represents security expenses for the
clubs, credit card commissions, repairs and maintenance costs,
cleaning expenses and professional fee. The other expenses
increased by approximately HK$2.1 million, or approximately
19.3%, from approximately HK$11.0 million for the year ended
31 May 2016 to approximately HK$13.1 million for the year
ended 31 May 2017. Such increase was mainly due to the
expansion of (i) the clubbing operations by acquiring Grand
Diamond Limited, the operation company of Fly, in November
2015; (i) the restaurant operations by opening Tiger Curry &
Cafe in July 2015; and (iii) the additional professional fees paid
after Listing.

(Loss)/profit before income tax expense

As a result of the foregoing, the Group changed from a profit
before income tax expense of approximately HK$10.4 million
for the year ended 31 May 2016 to a loss before income tax
expenses of approximately HK$9.0 million for the year ended
31 May 2017. Excluding the non-recurring listing expenses of
approximately HK$15.5 million for the year ended 31 May 2017,
the Group would have recorded a profit before income tax
expenses of approximately HK$6.5 million for the year ended
31 May 2017, representing a decrease of approximately 36.6%
as compared to the year ended 31 May 2016. Such decrease
was mainly due to the increased operating expenses mentioned
above.

(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive income for the year

As a result of the cumulative factors discussed above, the
Group changed from a profit and total comprehensive income
of approximately HK$8.4 million for the year ended 31 May
2016 to a loss position of approximately HK$9.8 million for the
year ended 31 May 2017. Excluding the non-recurring listing
expenses of approximately HK$15.5 million charged during the
year ended 31 May 2017, the Group would have recorded a
profit of approximately HK$5.7 million for the year ended 31
May 2017, representing an decrease of approximately 31.4%
as compared to the year ended 31 May 2016. Such decrease
was mainly due to the increased operating expenses mentioned
above.

HAtpA %

EMASYFEEEMREAY ERFFE
B EERIRERA  BREREEER - H
R HEE2016F5A31HIEFEL11.08
BB TIEMA2AEEBTHOI03%EHE
2017F5A3TAIEFELI131EEET - BH
ENEZRBROFKMAR2015F11 5 U EEFly
BN RIEEERAREGTESER (i)
Tiger Curry & Cafei®2015%F7 A% FEEE
EBEER RNEMEINOEINEEER
FrEg -

BRETS BB A1 (B518) 5 F

% i FIERE - NREBHREE201695H31
BItFESEBRAMESEHASEFL10488
BLE A E2017F5A31H EFENKRATE
A ATEIEL9.088E T - TarE=2017
FEAMBAIEFEMIELEE EMRAEZ415.5
AEBT AEBHZE2017FE5A318ILEE
HEREBRATEHA I ANEF M6 5885 T -
BEZE2016F5A31H L FEH L 4936.6% °
BREBSEERHMN LS E RN -

FRER), BAREZEWRAEE

AR P AEERFE  AEBEHHEE2016
F5A3THLEFEM M RE2EWALTELS.4
AEBTEAHZE2017F5A31 B IEFERE
BHISAEE MBI - TrTEIE2017F5H31H
IEEEANIFREE FHRAYA15.6A88
JC NEBEEE2017F5A31 8 I FEH55E
F45.78 BT - BRE E20165F5831H 1
FERMAD431.4% - BB ETERAN Ll
KRS IE N o
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FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group recorded net cash generated from operating activities
of approximately HK$15.2 million for the year ended 31 May
2016 to net cash used in operating activities of approximately
HK$9.9 million for the year ended 31 May 2017, primarily due
to (i) the payment of non-recurring listing expenses; (ii) the
payment of operating expenses; and (iii) the increase in trade
and other receivable.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group's total cash and bank balances
were approximately HK$60.7 million (2016: approximately
HK$17.0 million). The current ratio (calculated by current assets
divided by current liabilities) of the Group increased from
approximately 0.8 times as at 31 May 2016 to approximately
4.1 times as at 31 May 2017. The gearing ratio (calculated by
net debt divided by total capital) of the Group decreased from
approximately 77.8% as at 31 May 2016 to net cash position as
at 31 May 2017.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group obtained an unutilised banking
facility of HK$10.0 million granted from a commercial bank for
the working capital.

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 7 April 2017, since then, there
was no change in the capital structure of the Group. The capital
structure of the Group comprises of issued share capital and
reserves. As at 31 May 2017, the equity attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$67.7 million
(2016: approximately HK$12.0 million).

USE OF PROCEEDS

Based on the offer price of HK$0.34 per offer share, the net
proceeds from the Listing, after deducting the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$43.9 million. The Group intended to apply
such net proceeds in accordance with the purposes set out in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Company's prospectus dated 24 March 2017.
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 May 2017, the B _EMHERE2017F5A318 LM - A%

Group has applied the net proceeds as follows: B2 KPS FIBFEAENTRE
Adjusted
allocation of net
proceeds Amount utilised Amount
as at as at unutilised as at
31 May 2017 31 May 2017 31 May 2017
120174
53181 R2017% R2017%
SRR 5H31HM 5A318H
BARSE cEBALE REAELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT FET
Continue to expand and diversify —##&1E A M 2L
our outlet network P95 4948 26,248 - 26,248
Upgrade our club facilities TR ek 16,153 - 16,153
Working capital and other BIEE S LHAM
general purpose — A% 1,492 361 1,131
Total st 43,893 361 43,532

The unutilised net proceeds from the Listing are placed in the RENAH EFAEHIBEHEFERNAERNE
bank accounts of the Group in Hong Kong. BRIRTTERP o

The future plan and the planned amount of usage of net HAIEIRFAH KL ENAETIEFENRTE
proceeds as stated in the prospectus were based on the @& % JIEF R BRI = F20E B R K iR &)
best estimation and assumption of future market conditions &EfGE REBRIEL @ MATERUE IR RASE
at the time of preparing the prospectus while the proceeds BXEBRITENERERETUESE - BRER
were applied based on the actual development of the Group's FIE¥EKEIEERNEBTRESERNLE D
business and the industry. An analysis comparing the business  #T&EZI 0T :

objective stated in the prospectus with the Group's actual

business progress is set out below:
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Business objective and
strategy
EHBEBERER

(1)Upgrade our club facilities

(TR G Pk

Business plan and activity

RETERES

Renovate and refurbish Fly

Set up project team

Engage contractors for the
renovation and refurbishment
Engage designers for the concept of
renovation and refurbishment

Carry out renovation and
refurbishment

EEREFly

kA28 B EFK
REAEBETREANBNTRE
RESRETEDGIE 20 MBI TI26Y
EoA

EITRRL B TIE

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

Actual business progress up to
31 May 2017
BZ2017F5A31AMEBRERKER

e \We have set up a project team and
obtained quotations from various
contractors and designers.

e \We have engaged a contractor and
decided the new layout plan of the
renovation and refurbishment.

e \We have engaged a designer for
the new layout plan and concept of
renovation and refurbishment.

e No renovation and refurbishment
have been carried out as at 31 May
2017 as the Company is still under
negotiation with the contractor and
designer.

o BMEAMNIEEHEK  WEZRES
2 N R AT B ES HR1E o

o RMEZEAMRE H WHETHEEKRE
FIENFTHRRE

o BMEZELRMHERERBHT
EHFHBREI RS

o AR RIRIEHEAEE KR ATHARE
A 2017985 A31 BANARETT
HERBF IR -



Business objective and

strategy Business plan and activity

ES AR E 4 R EIRER

(2) Continue to expand and Establish sports-themed bars
diversify our outlet network e Set up a project team and conduct a
for clubbing operation study of potential locations

e Obtain renovation quotations

e Conduct market research

e Explore opportunities with
cooperation partners

2) MEBBRALZEAEGMEE RREDTIBEEE
HPYE A 4 o FXIIE R BB R BE BEITHR
o MGKERE
s REAMSRAE
o SRESERHNAEHRS

Actual business progress up to
31 May 2017
BZ2017565A31AMEBRERKER

e \We have set up a project team
and conducted a study of potential
locations regarding the accessibility,
visibility, size, structure, the
demographics and rental trends.

e \We have obtained renovation
quotations for potential sites.

e \We have conducted market
research regarding competitors’
existence, the breakeven period and
investment payback period, and the
necessary licences required.

e No sports-themed bar has been
established as at 31 May 2017 as
the Company is finding a suitable
site for the operation.

o RMEAMNIBER BB  WHBENE
MRBELERN  FHREREE - K
N B ADBREESBEER
E -

o RFIEMBELEIGEERE -

o BMEMBEHF - W FEH - &
BEIAHEMEERERAMIZHESE -

o ANARRIRIEYESBEHLEN
B WUR2017F5 831 BRI RE
FEBAME
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Business objective and Actual business progress up to

strategy Business plan and activity 31 May 2017
ES AR R 4 EBEEIRER BZ2017F5A31AMEBRERKER
(3)Continue to expand and Set up a standalone restaurant in Tsing ® We have set up a project team
diversify our outlet network Vi and conducted a study of potential
for restaurant operation e Set up a project team and conduct a locations regarding pedestrian
study of Tsing Yi traffic, convenience, demographics,
e Select a location and negotiate the size, structure and competition of
lease Tsing VYi.
e Sign an acceptance letter ¢ \We have selected a location after
e FEngage designers and contractors the study and negotiated with the
for layout and design for the landlord about the lease terms.
premise e \We have signed an acceptance
e Carry out renovation letter with the landlord which states
e Commence application of all the detailed terms of lease.
relevant licenses e \We have engaged a contractor and

a designer for the layout and design
for the premise.

3) MEBEBANZHIEREE EEXRMARFBLEE o HMEAIER B - AN B KA
HFYE A4S o BZIEBEE  WHBEETHR BEMENARE - EAE - ADE
o ENNHEMEEEE B R EEEBEFRATR -
s BETRBNZ o B RUTFRRETEL - WERF
o REEREHEN SR BEGIE S UMD K RERARAVRSK
& s HMEHEETIHRJBHRBAE  EH
o HITEIFN TiE SR A RO AR 5K
o FAREAEMBRRER o BMEREABRRKREEHIESH

o Jo M RRat o
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks involved in the operations of the Group's
business. Set forth below are some of the major risks that
could materially and adversely affect the Group.

(1) In order to expand and diversify our outlet network,
we expect to establish sports-themed bars and set
up more restaurants in Hong Kong. The food and
beverage and entertainment industry in Hong Kong is
highly competitive. Our ability to successfully open new
outlets is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties,
including identifying suitable locations and/or securing
leases on reasonable terms, timely securing necessary
governmental approvals and licences, ability to hire
quality personnel, timely delivery in decoration and
renovation works, securing sufficient customer demand,
securing adequate suppliers and inventory that meet
our quality standards on timely basis, reducing potential
cannibalisation effects between the locations of our
outlets and the general economic conditions. The costs
incurred in opening of new outlets and the expansion
plans may place substantial strain on our managerial,
operational and financial resources. As such, we cannot
assure that we can always operate the expanded
network on a profitable basis or that any new outlet
will reach the planned operating levels. If any new
outlet experiences prolonged delays in breaking even or
achieving our desired level of profitability or operate at
a loss, our operational and financial resources could be
strained and our overall profitability could be affected.

(2) For the years ended 31 May 2016 and 2017, revenue
generated from Volar accounted for approximately
70.6% and 65.5% of our total revenue, respectively. Our
success therefore depends significantly on our ability to
attract beverage sales, entrance income and market our
other offerings under our “Volar” brand, which in turn
depends on, among other things, the market perception
and acceptance of the brand. Negative publicity about

TERBRRTREEE
AEENEHEESLETRAR  TaEA%
EEREATHEE0ETEERARRIO
T o

(1) BAEHERERREFTIBECLE
ZEBUABARSEPIERS - TR
R BERIRITRABEFHRE AR - M
REB IR IPIE R ZEER KA
BERRRE - 2EVEEEMLE R
FAB G LY - RERGHE
MBI X AR - R BESEREA
8 RRTERECEMEETE - 2F%
RHNEPFENR - HAGENHER LA
RENER DEDEERENTE - &
ER PP E R A B R T BME
BICBENRRE - FRRHPYE RIFRATE
PSRRI BEZ BN HREERE
BERVBER - At - RABERE
P M R BANRE — B & NI E
#PTIE S AT B 2@ KE o AT
PIEIRIE R AL B R F B FE B
ERNBAKFRELELER - Ak
SEHRMNLENYBERER - I

ARERFNBERANESN -

(2)  HZE2016FN2017F5A31THILEE -
Volarf 15 Wz 7 BIME B A1 89 42 4k %5 49
70.6% }65.5% ° EIt - AR
AIEE EEURREEL WO SRBEE - A
%5 8 N #88[ Volar | 5 b2 &9 E 40 72 58 iR
T MZAENIRBER (KB 4E) RkgH
MSERLRAE - B Volar |fkE -
Volar& i85 ATk H AR 7S fE 48 « Fe sk
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our “Volar” brand, the premises on which Volar operates
or its offerings, us or our management could materially
and adversely affect public perception of this brand. Any
significant operational or other difficulties in the business
at or from Volar may reduce, disrupt or halt our operation
and business at the premises, which would materially
and adversely affect our business, prospects, reputation,
financial condition and results of operation. Experiencing
problems in operation which result in the need to close
the club temporarily or permanently will materially and
adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

As we lease or license all of the properties on which our
outlets operate, we are exposed to the fluctuations in
the commercial real estate market. There is no objective
way for us to accurately predict the rental rates in the
commercial real estate market in Hong Kong, and our
substantial operating lease obligations expose us to
potentially significant risks, including increasing our
vulnerability to adverse economic conditions, limiting
our ability to obtain additional financing and reducing
our cash available for other purposes. Any non-renewal
(whether a result of the landlord’s or licensor’s or our
decision) or termination of any of our leases or licence or
substantial increased rentals or licence fees could cause
us to close the relevant outlet or relocate to another site,
depending on our business needs or performance from
time to time. In such events, we could face a drop in
sales, write off leasehold improvements, and could incur
relocation costs for renovation, removal and resources
allocation, which could in turn result in financial strain in
our operations and diversion of management resources.

For the years ended 31 May 2016 and 2017, purchases
from our largest supplier accounted for approximately
53.4% and 54.8% of our total purchases, respectively.
We make purchases from the supplier under individual
purchase order, and have not entered into any long-
term contracts. If the supplier for any reason reduces
the volume supplied to us or cease to supply to us, we
will need to find alternative suppliers on similar sale
terms and conditions acceptable to us. If we fail to do
so in a timely manner, the operations of our clubs will
be interrupted, our costs may increase and our business,
financial condition, results of operations and growth
prospects may therefore be materially and adversely
affected.
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To address the above risks and uncertainties, the Directors
will closely monitor the progress of the expansion plan, to
operate the expanded network on a profitable basis timely. The
Directors will also continue to explore opportunities to diversify
our operation so that we could reduce our reliance on Volar and
the largest supplier. The Directors will continue to review and
evaluate the business objective and strategy and make timely
execution taking into account the business risks and market
uncertainties.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company's shares were successfully listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 7 April 2017. There has been no change
in the Company’s capital structure since 7 April 2017. The
capital structure of the Group comprises of issued share capital
and reserves. The Directors review and manage the Group's
capital structure regularly.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as described in this annual report, there was no other
significant investment for the year ended 31 May 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not carry out any material acquisition nor disposal
of any subsidiaries for the year ended 31 May 2017.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company, or by
any of the companies now comprising the Group for the years
ended 31 May 2016 and 2017.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Since most of transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the Group is not exposed to significant foreign exchange
exposure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 May 2017, the Group had capital commitments
amounted to approximately HK$0.1 million (2016: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 May 2016 and 2017.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Company did not have any pledge of assets as at 31 May
2016 and 2017.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 May 2017, the Group employed 104 employees
(2016: 96 employees). Employee costs (including Directors’
remuneration, wages, salaries, performance related bonuses,
other benefits and contribution to defined contribution pension
plans) amounted to approximately HK$18.3 million for the year
ended 31 May 2017 (2016: approximately HK$13.1 million).
The Group will endeavor to ensure that the employees’
salary levels are in line with industry practice and prevailing
market conditions and that employees’ overall remuneration is
determined based on the Group's and their performance.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (& #E 8), aged 50, is one of the
founders of the Group, a controlling shareholder, the chairman
and executive Director. He joined the Group in July 2013. Mr.
Ng is mainly responsible for the overall strategic development
and planning of the Group. Mr. Ng started investing in food and
beverage and entertainment business since 2005 and is familiar
with industry trends, market behaviour, customer and supplier
impact and dealing with competitions and other operational
challenges. He has assumed a leading role in the management
and is responsible for formulating direction. He has actively
involved in the handling of finance and investment related
issues of the Group since establishment. He has over 20 years
of experience in the investment and financing industry. Mr.
Ng worked at Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited (principally
engaged in the provision of capital market, advisory and wealth
management services before it was acquired by Bank of
America Corporation in January 2009) and left in the position
of managing director and head of China and Hong Kong equity
capital markets and financing (being mainly responsible for
business management and development) from February 1995
to August 2006. He then worked at J.P. Morgan Securities
(Asia Pacific) Limited (principally engaged in the provision of
investment banking and financial services) with his last position
being managing director in equities capital markets of global
investment banking department and chairman of Asia Pacific
equity capital and derivatives markets (being mainly responsible
for business management and development) from August 2006
to April 2013. Mr. Ng has been chief executive officer (being
mainly responsible for the overall strategic directions of the
company) of GRE Investment Advisors Limited (a company
licensed under the SFC (Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) licences) and principally engaged
in the provision of investment advisory and asset management
services) since August 2014. Mr. Ng obtained a bachelor's
degree in medical sciences from the University of Nottingham
in the United Kingdom in July 1990.

HITES
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Ms. Lau Sze Yuen (2/21), aged 41, is the executive director.
She joined the Group in June 2016. She is mainly responsible
for the overall day-to-day administration and management of
the Group. Ms. Lau has over 15 years of experience in the
food and beverage and entertainment industry. She worked
as an assistant manager (being mainly responsible for daily
operation of the restaurant) at Tony Roma's Famous For Ribs
Hong Kong (principally engaged in restaurant business) from
July 2000 to June 2001. Ms. Lau was an assistant manager in
marketing (being mainly responsible for business development)
at San Francisco Steak House (principally engaged in restaurant
business) from August 2001 to October 2003. She then served
as the general manager (being mainly responsible for business
development) of Hong Kong Ganpachi Limited (currently known
as Hong Kong Hachiban Limited) (principally engaged in the
business of food manufacturing and restaurant) from October
2003 to February 2010. Ms. Lau was the administrative and
office manager (being mainly responsible for overseeing the
daily operations) of Buzz Concepts Group Limited (principally
engaged in the provision of management services in food and
beverage and entertainment industry) from July 2010 to June
2016. Ms. Lau obtained a higher diploma in hotel and catering
management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong in August 1999.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kan Sze Man (& £ ), aged 45, was appointed as the
non-executive Director on 14 March 2017. Mr. Kan is mainly
responsible for the development and planning of the Group. Mr.
Kan has over 14 years of experience in the property investment
field. Mr. Kan was a trainee solicitor and subsequently an
assistant solicitor of Johnson Stokes & Master (currently known
as Mayer Brown JSM) (principally engaged in the provision of
legal services) from October 1995 to October 1997 and from
October 1997 to December 1999, respectively. He worked at
Freshfields (currently known as Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer)
(principally engaged in the provision of legal services) as a
solicitor from January 2000 to May 2000. He then served
as a senior vice president and legal counsel (being mainly
responsible for leading the legal department) of Hikari Tsushin
International Limited (currently known as China Oil And Gas
Group Limited) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603) and formerly principally engaged in investment
in internet and telecommunication related business and
manufacture of electronic products) from May 2000 to March
2001. Mr. Kan is currently an executive director, chief operating
officer and group general counsel (being mainly responsible for
leading the legal department and strategic business planning)
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of CSI Properties Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 497) and principally engaged in property
repositioning and investment with its subsidiaries principally
engaged in property value enhancement and development,
property investment and securities investment in Hong Kong
and PRC). He joined CSI Properties Limited as an executive
director and group general counsel in March 2001. Mr. Kan
obtained a bachelor of arts degree in philosophy, politics and
economics from Wadham College, University of Oxford in the
United Kingdom in July 1993. He then obtained his diploma
in law and a postgraduate diploma in legal practice from The
College of Law, London in the United Kingdom in 1994 and
1995, respectively. He has been admitted as a solicitor of Hong
Kong since November 1997.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Sui Chi (& % ), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2017. He is
also the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each
of the nomination committee and remuneration committee. Mr.
Wong has over 20 years of finance and accounting experience
including but not limited to, financial management, corporate
management and auditing, serving in international accounting
firms, manufacturing and retailing companies, listed property
development company, securities and futures brokerage
company and shipping company. He was an independent non-
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings
Group Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1355) and principally engaged in the
budget hotel operations and provision of hotel consultancy
and management services in the PRC) from December 2012
to July 2015. Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive
director of U Banquet Group Holding Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1483) and principally
engaged in the operation of full-service Chinese restaurant
chain in Hong Kong) from November 2013 to October 2016.
He has been the financial controller (being mainly responsible
for planning and directing the finance and accounting functions
and providing financial analysis to the management) of Shine
Vision Investments Limited (principally engaged in the retailing
of eyewear products) since March 2012. Mr. Wong obtained
a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from the City
Polytechnic of Hong Kong (currently known as City University
of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong in November 1991, a master of

EEER FEREEEAEIBREBREER
2 - HR2001F3AMAE R RBEIWERR A
Al BERTTEEREESAZER - BEE
M1993F7 A M B REFERERBELR T
2 POAREBEY S BN - BE%EIN1994
FRI19FIMEREAGBIRERRNEBEZERR
FEREBEBRIMREE - HE1997F 1M AER
Al BB R -

BIFHTES

EWMBELE 495 M2017F3A14R EZ
EAEBUIENTES  NABTZEZESETEMN
RAZESRTMNEZESKE - BLEHEA
0F SRR R BREETRARBEES
FENESAT RERTEQR - ETWWER
BNF - BHENBEEL AR EMER T
WHETHEE CEEEBRESTIE #R
2012128 22016 7R E A BERBE £ E
TRARAF(RER EmH R (RH R
§% 0 1365) + B B E AR IR E R
AR EEE R R R ERRTS) 2 B IEHTT
BE - H2013F11A 22016108 &% 4%
EEEBEEEERER AT (REZAT LT
NEI(BRMD SR 1483)  TERNHEKE SR
ERBPXNEEEF) ZBLIENTES - &
201203 ARABRREEERAG(EEL
LBREERTE)MEAE  FTZEERER
fREG KL e YmEEBRENE S
e BAEMINF1IAEEBNEE B
METER(RBESRMA2) gt 2L
fil » BR2003F 12 A RS RE R B KREH IKE

2017 Annual Report 4%

25



26

science degree in financial management from the University of
London in the United Kingdom in December 2003. He obtained
a certificate in taxation and accounting in PRC organized by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales since April 2008 and July 2008, respectively.

Mr. Li Lap Sun (Z=3 %), aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 14 March 2017. He is also the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Li worked at Merrill
Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited (principally engaged in the provision of
capital market, advisory and wealth management services before it
was acquired by Bank of America Corporation in January 2009) from
March 1994 to October 2004 and left in the position of director (being
mainly responsible for heading the equity sales team in Hong Kong).
He then worked at Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. (principally engaged
in investment banking, securities and investment management
businesses) with his last position being executive director in the
equity division (being mainly responsible for providing investment
advice to fund managers and leading marketing projects for equity
sales) from October 2004 to March 2007. Subsequently, he has
been the director and fund manager (being mainly responsible
for investment portfolio management and compliance matters) of
Spitzer Asset Management Limited (a company licensed under the
SFC (Type 9 (asset management) licence) and principally engaged
in the provision of asset management services) since August 2007.
Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of arts degree in economics from the
University of California, Los Angeles in the United States of America
in June 1989 and a master of business administration degree
from The University of Southern California in the United States of
America in May 1992.

Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy ({EEI£), aged 52, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2017.
He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
a member of each of the audit committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in the
fields of accounting and auditing as well as business and
financial advisory. He worked as an auditor in Ernest &
Young (principally engaged in the provision of assurance,
tax, advisory and transaction advisory services) between July
1989 and August 1992. He was an assistant director (being
mainly responsible for overseeing the finance, accounting and
investment businesses) in the accounting department of Capital
Asia Limited (currently known as Goldin Properties Holdings
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Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
283) and principally engaged in property development) from
June 1993 to August 1996. He worked as group financial
controller (being mainly responsible for overseeing the finance,
accounting and investment businesses) in Fortune Oil Holdings
Plc. (principally engaged in investments and operations in oil
and gas supply and infrastructure projects in China) from June
2001 to March 2008. He was the chief financial officer of
the mining division of Mongolia Investment Group Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0402) and
principally engaged in the mining and construction businesses)
from May 2010 to March 2013, and following its name changed
to Peace Map Holding Limited and its business changed to the
provision of aerial sensing data services in China, he was re-
designated as senior consultant (being mainly responsible for
overseeing the finance, accounting and investment businesses)
until he left in December 2013. Mr. Ng has been an executive
director (being mainly responsible for the business development
and transactions execution) of Kolux Development Limited
(principally engaged in corporate consulting business) since its
incorporation on 25 August 1992. Mr. Ng obtained an honours
diploma in accountancy from Lingnam College (currently
known as Lingnam University) in Hong Kong in November
1988, a bachelor of commerce accounting degree from Curtin
University of Technology in Australia in February 1996 and a
master of business administration degree from The University
of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2007. He has been
a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since May 2000, a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since October 1996 and an associate of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since
January 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gurung Bhojendra, aged 40, is the general manager
of Volar, and is responsible for the day-to-day operation and
management of Volar. Mr. Gurung joined Volar in December
2004 as a general manager, and has over 12 years of
experience in the management of night entertainment clubs.

Mr. Kharga Vishal, aged 34, is the general manager of Fly, and
is responsible for the day-to-day operation and management of
Fly. He joined our Group in July 2014 as general manager of
Fly. He has over seven years of experience in the management
of food and beverage and entertainment establishments. Mr.
Kharga worked at Hero Corporation Limited (currently known
as Buzz Concepts Management Limited) (formerly principally
engaged in the operation of a bar) with his last position
being the general manager (being mainly responsible for daily
operations) from December 2006 to December 2011, a bar
manager (being mainly responsible for overseeing operations
of the bar in the restaurant) of Lucky Trend International
Limited (principally engaged in the management and operation
of a restaurant) from December 2011 to July 2012, and the
general manager (being mainly responsible for daily operations)
of Billion Best Investment Limited (principally engaged in the
management and operations of a restaurant and bar) from
August 2012 to June 2014.

Mr. Wong Chi Wai (EL &), aged 32, is our company secretary.
He joined the Group in August 2016. Mr. Wong is mainly
responsible for the overall management of the company secretarial
affairs and financial matters of the Group. He was a manager
(being mainly responsible for supervising and conducting client
engagements) at Samuel H. Wong & Co. (principally engaged in
the provision of audit, secretarial, tax and other services for Hong
Kong and overseas client) from December 2008 to March 2014.
He was the company secretary of Tic Tac International Holdings
Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1470) and principally engaged in watch retailing business)
from February 2015 to November 2015. Mr. Wong obtained a
bachelor's degree in business administration with a major in
accountancy and a minor in financial services from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong in October 2008. He
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since May 2012.
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The Board is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance by emphasizing transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibilities and fairness. The
Board strives to ensure that effective self-regulatory practices
exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the year. The Company has applied the
principles of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions
of the CG Code for the year ended 31 May 2017, except for
certain deviations as specified with considered reasons for such
deviations as explained below. The Board of the Company will
keep reviewing and updating such practices from time to time
to ensure compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group. At the
same time, it also has the duty to enhance the effectiveness
of the corporate governance practices of the Group. Under
the Board, there are three board committees, namely the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference (available
on the Company’s website) and assist the Board in supervising
certain functions of the senior management.

Pursuant to Rule 5.66 of the GEM Listing Rule, the Directors
have also requested any employee of the Company or director
or employee of a subsidiary of the Company who, because of
his/her office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is
likely to possess inside information in relation to the securities
of the Company not to deal in securities of the Company when
he/she would be prohibited from dealing by the code of conduct
as if he/she was a Director.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings.
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Having made specific enquiries to all the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct for directors’
securities transactions for the year ended 31 May 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board comprises six Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (Chairman and Executive Director)
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen

Non-Executive Director:
Mr. Kan Sze Man

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi
Mr. Li Lap Sun
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 23 to 28.

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the
Group's affairs. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
for the strategic development of the Group with the goal
of maximising long-term shareholder value, while balancing
broader stakeholder interests.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings,
audit committee meetings, remuneration committee meeting,

nomination committee meeting and general meeting since the
Listing Date to 31 May 2017 is set out in the following table:
Audit
Committee
Board Meetings Meetings
(attendance/ (attendance/
total no. of total no. of
Name of Directors meeting held)  meeting held)
EREEEER
EzgeE(LE (LEgER
EERE/2 H/ETER
Esps TEELE) #e)
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester ~ SMHAL4E 0 N/A
ek
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen ABHa L 1M N/A
TERA
Non-executive Director ~ FFH{TEE
Mr. Kan Sze Man BIRAAE i N/A
i
Independent Non- BUFNTEE
executive Directors
Mr. Wong Sui Chi Bl E 10 0
Mr. Li Lap Sun FUREE 10 N
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy — {EEELAE n n

All Directors are provided with details of agenda items for
decisions making with reasonable notice. Directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with and advising the Board on compliance matters. Directors
are also provided with access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as
Directors of the Company, at the expense of the Company.
Directors who are considered to have conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and
would abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.
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Remuneration Nomination

Committee Committee General

Meeting Meeting Meeting

(attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/

total no. of total no. of total no. of

meeting held) meeting held) meeting held)
FHEEEEE REZESER

(HEEER (HEEER BEAES(LEE

VL Ton-+ BV i+ B V¢ Ve T

#ey) wey) eRAY)

N/A N/A N/A

TER TER TER

N/A N/A N/A

TEA NEA ek

N/A N/A N/A

TER TNEA TEA

N/A N/A N/A

ki TNEA TEA

N/A N/A N/A

TER TER TER

N/A N/A N/A

TEA ek ek
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All Directors assume the responsibilities owed to the
shareholders of the Company for the well-being and success
of the Company. They are aware of their duties to act in good
faith and in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records so as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company'’s
overall financial position. The Board updates shareholders on
the operations and financial position of the Group through
quarterly, half yearly and annual results announcements as well
as the publication of timely announcements of other matters as
prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management
expertise, in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Each of
the independent non-executive Director has made an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Company'’s articles of association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual.

During the year ended 31 May 2017, the Company has not
separated the roles of chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester was the chairman of
the Company and responsible for overseeing the operations of
the Group. There is no chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board considers that such arrangement has the benefit of
ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning of the
Group.
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Nevertheless, the Company will continue to look for suitable
candidates and will make necessary arrangement pursuant
to the requirement under A.2.1 of CG Code as and when
necessary.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for three years but subject to termination in certain
circumstance as stipulated in the relevant service contracts.
At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for
the time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one third, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
members after his appointment and be eligible for re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed as an addition to
the existing board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties and has adopted written terms of reference on its
corporate governance functions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;
(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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From the Listing Date and up to the date of this report, the
Board has performed the corporate governance duties in
accordance with its terms of reference.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 May 2017, the Board adopted a
board diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered
diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

On recommendation from the nomination committee, the
Board will set measurable objectives to implement the Policy
and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The nomination committee will
review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was set up on 14 March 2017 to oversee the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management.

Within terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B1.2 of the CG code, the primary objectives of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the
Directors and the senior management and determining the
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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The Company was listed on 7 April 2017. During the period
from the Listing Date to 31 May 2017, no Remuneration
Committee meeting was held.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members
namely:—

Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Sui Chi
Mr. Li Lap Sun

All of the members are independent non-executive Directors.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 May 2017 is set out below:

HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 T 702 1,000,000% 7T

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) on 14 March 2017 for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
succession planning for the directors.

Within terms of reference in compliance with code provision
Ab.2 of the CG Code, the principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the Board composition, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and viewing the
board diversity policy.

In accordance with the Company's articles of association,
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester and Ms. Lau Sze Yuen shall retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company was listed on 7 April 2017. During the period
from the Listing Date to 31 May 2017, no Nomination
Committee meeting was held.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment
of the Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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The Nomination Committee comprises three members namely:—

Mr. Li Lap Sun (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy
Mr. Wong Sui Chi

All of the members are independent non-executive Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee ("Audit
Committee”) on 14 March 2017 with written terms of reference
in compliance with code provision C3.3 of the CG Code that
set out the authorities and duties of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee performs, amongst others, the following
functions:

° Review financial information of the Group

° Review relationship with and terms of appointment of
the external auditors

° Review the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system.

During the year ended 31 May 2017, the Audit Committee
held one meeting. The Audit Committee oversees the internal
control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any
material issues, and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises three members namely:—

Mr. Wong Sui Chi (Chairman)
Mr. Li Lap Sun
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

All the members are independent non-executive Directors
(including one independent non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company's existing external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems in order to safeguard the Group's
assets and shareholders’ interests, and review and monitor
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control and risk
management systems on a regular basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are
adequate. The Company also has a process for identifying,
evaluating, and managing the significant risks to the
achievement of its operational objective. The risk management
and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objective,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. This process is subject
to continuous improvement up to the date of this report. The
day-to-day operation is entrusted to each individual department,
which is accountable for its own conduct and performance, and
is required to strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board.
The Company carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the
internal control systems from time to time in order to ensure
that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and ever
changing business environment.

During the year ended 31 May 2017, the Company has engaged
an independent internal control consultant (the “Internal Control
Consultant”) to perform a review of internal control system
including the areas of financial, operation, compliance and risk
management. Based on the Internal Control Consultant’s review
and recommendations, the Board have modified and adopted
certain new internal control procedures to refine the internal
control system. The Internal Control Consultant has performed
a follow-up review after the modification and adoption of the
new internal control procedures have been taken place and
confirmed that the Group has implemented the measures
recommended by the Internal Control Consultants to rectify all
the previous findings identified.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR'’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their
reporting responsibilities and opinion on the Group's financial
statements for the year ended 31 May 2017 is set out in the
section headed "Independent Auditor's Report” in this annual
report.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could lead
to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.
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The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited for the year ended 31
May 2017 are set out as follows:

HE2017F5A31B It FECHN ER FTEE
YiEESEMEEAARA RN E B W
T

Fee paid/payable

2t EAE A

HK$'000

FEIT

Audit services EZARTE 600
Non-audit services — Listing IEEZARTE — £ 1,950
Total 45 2,550

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and
fair view. In preparing the financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies and standard are selected and applied
consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and facilitating communications among
Directors as well as with shareholders and management.

Mr. Wong Chi Wai was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company on 24 March 2017 and reported to the Chairman
of the Company.

Mr. Wong declared that he undertook not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update his skill and knowledge
immediate prior to the financial year date.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment public.
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The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the
Company (www.bcigroup.com.hk) has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development (“CPD") to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Reading materials on relevant
topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

During the year ended 31 May 2017, all the Directors have

participated in continuous professional development and the
relevant details are set out below:

Name of Directors

BEERS

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester RaBELAE
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen 2B m
Non-executive Director HHITEFE

Mr. Kan Sze Man EtREE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIRTES
Mr. Wong Sui Chi ‘i SEE

Mr. Li Lap Sun B E

Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy REIE LA

Participation in CPD includes attending seminars, reading
relevant materials in relation to the business of the Group,
directors’ duties, latest development of the GEM Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company
so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an
informed manner.
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The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure
its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include annual general meeting, annual
report, various notices, announcements and circulars. The
annual general meeting and other general meetings of the
Company are primary forums for communication between
the Company and its shareholders. The Company provides
shareholders with relevant information on the resolution(s)
proposed at general meetings in a timely manner in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules. The information provided is
reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s).

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 May 2017. A consolidated
version of the Company’s constitutional documents is available
on the Company's website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

IN CONSTITUTIONAL

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are
requested to follow article 64 of the Articles of Association
of the Company which provides that extraordinary general
meetings should be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months
after the deposit of such requisition. If the Board fails to
proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting within 21
days of the deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) may
convene an extraordinary general meeting himself/themselves,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company are laid down in Article
113 of the Company’s Articles of Association. No person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by
the Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Article will commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of
the period during which such notices to the Company may be
given will be at least 7 days.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for
the attention of company secretary, by email: jerry.wong@bci-
group.com, or mail to Basement, Ho Lee Commercial Building,
No. 38-44 D' Aguilar Street, Central, Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to
ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful
and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well
as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance
could ensure an effective distribution of the resources and
shareholders’ interests. The senior management will continue
endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group's
corporate governance level and quality.
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The Company presents this Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Report (the “Report”) for the year
ended 31 May 2017 (“Reporting Period”), in accordance the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set
out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules and based on the
material aspects of the Group and stakeholders.

This Report serves to provide details of the Company's ESG
policies and initiatives of its major operating segment in Hong
Kong, which is principally engaged in the operation of clubbing
and restaurant business.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for
the Company's ESG strategy and reporting, monitoring
and managing the ESG-related risks. The management is
responsible for evaluating effectiveness of the ESG risk
management and internal control systems and the management
confirms that these systems are effective to mitigate our ESG-
related risks. Assessment of ESG status and progress are
conducted on an ongoing basis. To understand the concerns of
various stakeholders, the Company has engaged and discussed
with various business functions and management personnel,
and identified the below materiality of the ESG issues to be
included in this Report:

ESG Aspects
R - HERERFE
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Material ESG issues
EABE HERTAREE

A. Environmental
RIE
Emissions Mainly non-hazardous emissions from solid waste
R B+ EREHHD
Use of resources Use of electricity, water and paper
BRERA IKE R REA
The environment and natural resources Noise pollution
RERRRER BG4
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ESG Aspects
BRI - HERERFE

Material ESG issues
EARBE -HERTAREE

B. Social
e
Employment Employment practices and equal opportunity
(=2 BRERLTEHRS
Health & safety Workplace health and safety
BEkZE TESMERRLZ R
Development and training Staff development and training
RS EE#EKIE
Labour standards Anti-child and forced labour
8 TR PrIiEET RaEH4T
Supply chain management Sustainable supply chain
HEEER A B e
Product responsibility Products and services quality assurance, data privacy
EmAT EmMRBEERE EHLE
Anti-corruption Anti-corruption
RESF RES
Community investment Supporting the community
HERE R FF

The Group has complied with the “comply or explain” AEEBERFEHFMANEETERE LS kEBR
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the Reporting & 85| FTEH[ B <FREARRE 1163 ©

Period.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

1. Emissions

295 &)

The major source of the air emissions of the
Group is the electricity consumption at the
workplace. In order to reduce the air emissions,
the Group has implemented some measures,
please see "Environmental, Social and Governance
Report - A. Environmental — 2.Use of resources”.

The operation of clubbing and restaurant business
may generate certain sewage and garbage which
are mainly non-hazardous emissions. The sewage
and garbage would be collected daily in the
clubs and restaurants. In addition, the Group has
engaged a third-party cleaning and pest control
company to perform cleaning in each of the
outlets on a daily basis.

The Group has also taken some additional
measures to reduce the emission of air and
greenhouse gas, discharges into water and land
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and generation of waste such as: i) some filtration
systems has been installed for the waste water
produced from cooking; and ii) we have engaged
an environmental company to dispose the waste
cooking oil. Furthermore, the Group has planned
to install electrostatic precipitator in restaurants to
filter the fine particles produced in daily operation.

Since only beverage and food products are served,
the Group believes that the nature of the business
does not involve substantial risks with respect to
environmental matters.

To minimise the impact on the environment, the
Group keeps monitoring the latest environmental
regulations, as well as market trends on new
environmental practices. Moreover, the Group
continuously seeks opportunities on improving the
effectiveness of the current practices.

Use of Resources

The resources used by the Group are principally
attributed to electricity, water and paper
consumed at the back office and outlets.

Electricity is consumed during the daily business
operations from using electrical equipment. To
promote an environmental friendly office, the
Group promotes and advises several measures
such as: i) employees are encouraged to switch
the electric equipment to energy-saving mode
such as the automatically power down of printers
and computers after a period of inactivity and
turn off lighting before leaving the office and
outlets; and ii) temperature switches are adopted
to maintain the workplaces at a reasonable
temperature.

Although non-significant amounts of water is
consumed through the business activities, the
Group also encourages water saving by driving
water-saving habits and posting green messages
in the workplace to remind the employees to use
water effectively.
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The Group implements measures for reducing
the paper consumption such as: i) double-sided
printing and reuse of single side printed paper
are encouraged; and ii) encourage to use more
e-channels to disseminate corporate information.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to minimise the
environmental impacts arising from the operation
of club and restaurant activities. To mitigate
the noise nuisance, the outlets are installed
with sound proofing foam and noise absorbing
products.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied
with all applicable laws and regulations relating to
the environment in material respects, in particular
the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Water Pollution
Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter
400 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

B. SOCIAL

1.

Employment

Employee is the foundation of success of
the Group. The Group is an equal opportunity
employer and no discrimination is tolerated on
the basis of age, gender, race, colour, sexual
orientation, disability or marital status.

The Group aims to provide a harmonious and
respectful working environment for the employees
through competitive remuneration packages
including basic salary, commissions, holidays,
group insurance and mandatory provident fund
that are comparable to the market standard
and structured to commensurate with individual
responsibilities, qualifications, experiences and
performance. Periodical review is conducted and
the appraisal result provides basis for annual
salary review and promotion appraisal.
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The employment contract specified the terms
including scope of work, wages/allowances,
working hours, rest days, dismissal and other
benefits and welfare to the staff. To stay
competitive, the Group's base salaries are within
industry norms.

During the Reporting Period, no material non-
compliance case was noted in relation to
employment laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Health and Safety

The Group realises that ensuring the health and
safety of employees are very important to the
business activities and therefore makes every
effort to build and maintain a working environment
which is free of workplace health and safety
incidents.

The Group followed safety manuals issued
by the Occupational Safety of Health Council
which set out work safety measures to prevent
common accidents which could happen in the
clubs and restaurants. Managers are responsible
to ensure compliance of safety, hygiene and
fire requirements by conducting checks and
inspections of the premises regularly such
as fire exit passageway shall be kept clear
from obstruction. Fire extinguishers and other
equipment shall be kept at the correct location
and that they are accessible and remain free from
obstruction.

The Group has engaged a third-party security
company for the clubs which will provide a team
of 25 security staff, working under the supervision
of the club managers. The roles of the security
team cover performing patrolling, attending the
scene and liaising with customers to stop any
potential fights in case of arguments or any
fights or other suspicious circumstances, and
reporting fights, drug use, theft and harassments
to the police when necessary. The Group has
established safety and anti-crime manual, which
is implemented strictly by the security team. The
club managers are responsible for coordinating
with the security team.
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The Group implements headcounts and identity
checking procedures at the entrance of the
premises of the clubs to monitor the number
of guests inside the premises and whether the
customers are above 18 years old when entering
into the clubs. In order to spot potential illegal
activities such as fights, drug abuse or theft at an
early stage, over 20 CCTVs are installed inside the
club premises. The security team will attend the
scene investigate immediately if any suspicious
circumstance arises or stop any potential fight
inside the premises once identified.

During the Reporting Period, no material non-
compliance case was noted in relation to health
and safety laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Development and Training

As part of the Group's initiatives for improving
business performance and encouraging personal
development of the staff, the Group strives to
provide comprehensive development to the
employees.

The Group has provided training across different
operational functions, including induction training
for new employees, technical training, and training
to enhance the employees’ knowledge, skill level
and quality when performing their duties. For the
bartenders and cooks, the Group encourages them
to take courses to further enhance their technical
skills. The senior management also gives regular
training to the staff in relation to customer service
skills.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of child and
forced labour in the Group. During the interview,
the recruiters would check the identity cards of
job applicants to ensure that under-aged applicant
would not be employed. In addition to conducting
background checks on candidates and formalising
reporting procedures to address any exceptions
found, the Group also performs regular reviews
and inspections to detect the existence of any
child or forced labour in the operations.
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During the Reporting Period, no material non-
compliance case was noted in relation to child and
forced labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers have a direct impact on the Group's
sustainability performance. The Group's suppliers
mainly include beverage and food suppliers.

The Group selects the major suppliers based on a
set of criteria which includes product and service
quality, cost, reputation, service, agility, delivery
efficiency, past performance and relationship with
the Group. Such supplier selection criteria ensures
that the Group can secure continual supply of
ingredients of consistent quality, identify the
source of supply promptly, and maintain flexibility
in stock levels. Generally, the Group would not
procure from the suppliers unless they pass the
selection criteria.

The club and restaurant managers are primarily
responsible for monitoring the level of food and
beverage and making orders. Each of the clubs
and restaurants place purchase orders with the
procurement staff which then place orders with
the relevant suppliers. Upon delivery of the items
to the clubs and restaurants, the staff checks the
time of delivery, the brand and type, quantity and
quality of deliveries against the delivery notes or
invoices and the orders before acceptance. The
Group also inspects the best-by date and condition
of the food ingredients, and if they fall below our
quality control standards, the Group would return
them to the suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not
experienced any significant problems with the
quality of beverage and food products provided
by the suppliers, any material limitations in the
supply nor any shortage of beverage and food
products. The Group believes that the supply
chain management and procedures can ensure the
safety of the supply chain.

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

RBERE > TEFRELR
REBET RBHS TEEE
HEIEF o

HEEEE
HEBREAKENAHEER
KABEETE - AKREOH
FRAEIZEEAMERMEE
7 o

AEBRE-ERE(BEEM
LIREEE KA BE R
B BEM _REBHE
RN EAREBE RS )EE
TEHRER  ZFHEREE
FEBERNEERFEESH
EEERTENRM - A EREH
HER #BHBEEEFKTF -
—RME - RIFHERBAER
PR EZFRE - TAIAREET
SRHRE -

S ERKETEREEE
EmBERHEFERTE -5
HemkEBERRBAET
BoBRARBAE@ABH
R TE RMEEGHRE
BR BITerBEmRER
SRR TRBEXEHESIK
BERATEZERYmENRE
B ogERER - AKETE
R ERM A RERH &R -
IR ABAPIE B2 HIIRE
EYRMIR B T ER -

B it

&
B
~

R &S B - A5 B &
FER AR AR K R mE B
MEREERE  HAEARH
FEFR B 3k R E B R fn A2 R © K
SERE HEREERER
REMMERHEEREL S -



Product Responsibility
Products and Services Quality Assurance

Considering the importance of continuous
customers’ satisfaction and support, the Group
is committed to providing customers with high-
quality services and products. The Group provides
training and guidelines to its staff on service-
related areas such as beverage and food handling
and personal hygiene to enhance the quality of
services provided to the customers. All front-
line service staff are trained to be courteous,
competent and responsive and to provide cordial
hospitality to customers. The club and restaurant
staff are required to be professionally uniformed
during all working hours. The club and restaurant
managers hold daily briefing sessions with all
front-line service staffs on the daily operations of
clubs and restaurants. In these briefing sessions,
the managers would review staff performance
and reflect the customers’ feedbacks. Such
daily performance reviews assist the front-line
service staff in maintaining and improving service
levels. The Group strives to promote customer
satisfaction through responding to their comments
and feedbacks. The front-line service staff are
required to treat customer requests, enquiries
or complaints promptly and seriously. In case of
any customer complaint in relation to beverage
or food or quality of services, the relevant club
or restaurant managers would take initiatives to
investigate and resolve the matter and attend to
the customers promptly.

If any staff receives a complaint from a customer,
he shall report to his supervisor, usually the club
or restaurant manager, who would review and
understand the matter with the relevant customer
and offer remedial proposals to the customer. If
the complaint cannot be resolved on site or if a
complaint has been received through emails, the
club or restaurant managers will investigate the
incident and file a report to the management with
solutions to improve or avoid similar incidents
in the future. An explanation will be sent to the
relevant customer to ensure the matter would
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be resolved and to maintain a good customer
relationship. The Group management will review
the complaints and arrange necessary training to
the staff to consistently improve the operation of
the clubs and restaurants.

Data Privacy

The Group has implemented certain internal
control measures in ensuring the confidentiality of
the operation data so as to protect the suppliers,
business partners, customers and itself. The
Group's employment contract, staff handbook
and internal control manual clearly define the
requirements in relation to protecting the Group's
data. For example, i) staffs are only allowed to
access, retrieve, store and/or copy computer
data that are necessary and directly related to
their work; ii) any unauthorized access, retrieval,
storage or copy of computer data, as well as
unauthorized transfer and disclosure of data to
third parties, are strictly prohibited and may lead to
summary dismissal; iii) administrative department
is tasked with the implementation of a practical
and reliable mechanism to ensure security of all
data contained in computers and to protect data
against unauthorized access or retrieval.

During the Reporting Period, no material non-
compliance case was noted in relation to product
and service quality laws and regulations in Hong
Kong.

Anti-corruption

Corruption, deception, bribery, forgery, extortion,
money-laundering and any other kinds of
business fraud are strictly prohibited and fully
investigated by Audit Committee in the Group.
In every business operation, employees and the
management must demonstrate integrity. No
tolerance is given to fraud. According to the staff
handbook and internal control manual established
by the Group, policy is established to govern
investigation and follow-up procedures of reported
fraud incidents. To enhance the governance of
the Group, periodic and systematic fraud risk
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assessments are conducted. Any abnormality
should be reported to the Audit Committee for
investigation. Whistle-blowing channel is also
established for the reporting of violations of
professional conducts.

During the Reporting Period, no material non-
compliance case was noted in relation to business
fraud laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Community Investment

The Group cares about its community, and is
willing to give the helping hands to the needy
in order to promote the harmony and stability of
the society. The management continues to focus
on the needs of the society, and endeavour to
enhance the sustainability of the community.

At e FEEMEEBRE -
EREZZBEGMmE - UIEH
HE - AEENRDELBERR
B A E R R TETT
3 o

8

KEEME - pmEREAL
REBEEREEREROT
o

HERE

AEEREELR  YEEE
BMEFTENA  AEELEH
FHERBTE - BEEEREBT
HENTER TREMERS

AR EE o

2017 Annual Report 4%

51



52

The Board presents its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 22.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
Group is a food and beverage and entertainment group which
is principally engaged in the operation of night entertainment
clubs and restaurants in Hong Kong.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of two
night entertainment clubs and three restaurants focusing on
Japanese-style curry dishes. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment focuses on the operation
results of the Group as a whole as the Group's resources are
integrated.

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from customers in Hong
Kong. The principal assets of the Group were also located in
Hong Kong. Accordingly, no analysis by geographical segment
is provided.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2017 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to
126 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 May 2017.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group for the year ended 31
May 2017.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 May 2017, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium, capital
reserve and accumulated losses, amounted to approximately
HK$41,406,000.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 May 2017 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (Chairman)
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Kan Sze Man

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi
Mr. Li Lap Sun
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with articles of association of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 23 to 28 in the
section headed "“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management”.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester and Ms. Lau Sze Yuen, being
the executive Directors, Mr. Kan Sze Man, being the non-
executive Director, and Mr. Wong Sui Chi, Mr. Li Lap Sun and
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy, being the independent non-executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 7 April 2017 (the “Listing Date”) and shall
continue thereafter unless terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than one or three months’ notice in writing.
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TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed
for a specific terms subject to the relevant provisions of the
articles of association or any other applicable laws whereby the
Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 May 2017, Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester, an executive
Director, had the following interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ") as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name of Directors Capacity/ Nature of Interest

and underlying shares

B 12 R AEEA AR 10 B B

ESnR 510 HmtE

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester
RIBAELAE

Interest in controlled corporation

Ry AE s

For the year ended 31 May 2017, there were no debt securities
issued by the Group at any time. Save as disclosed herein, as
at 31 May 2017, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their associates had any interests and short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which each of them has taken or deemed to have taken under
the provisions of the SFO); or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred
to therein; or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY

To the best of the Director's knowledge, as at 31 May 2017,
the following shareholders had interests in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO: =

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name

wEEB
Aplus Concept Limited Mote n(#z1)

Ng Shing Joe Kester More 2
R4 R (Wat2)

Louey Andrea A”Ce (Note 3)

E kTR

Chung Cho Yee, Mico e

SE A3 (Wie)

Digisino Assets Limited (Mot 4/(4)

Earnest Equity Limited (Note #(A7iz4)
CSI Properties Limited MNote &

AARIIEBRRD TN

Phoenix Year Limited (Note 6/(/iz6)

Capacity/ Nature of
Interest

B0, HEmHE

Beneficial owner

En#EAA

Interest in controlled corporation
R EE R

Interest of spouse

B

Interest in controlled corporation
R EE R

Interest in controlled corporation
R EERER

Interest in controlled corporation
R EE RS

Interest in controlled corporation
R EE R

Beneficial owner

RARBRGHBEFR

Number of shares

RO E

371,520,000

371,520,000

371,520,000

159,180,000

159,180,000

159,180,000

159,180,000

159,180,000

FERRREMALREQXTRG - HE
RO REEZETHEDERAR

RESEPRA - N2017E58318 * L TFRE
RARR BRI s FAREAR (5 o B iR s AR IR
BE K HE G HI 336151 B H B L R Ay 4

Percentage of
shareholding
REBDL
46.44%
46.44%
46.44%
19.90%
19.90%
19.90%

19.90%

19.90%

Aplus Concept Limited®) & &2 317 A

MREETEZEHRFR

BEmEAA
Notes: Bfet -
1. The entire issued share capital of Aplus Concept Limited is 1.
wholly-owned by Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester.
2. Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester is deemed to be interested in the 2.

same number of shares held by Aplus Concept Limited under

the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

Long positions in shares of the Company (CONT'D)

3. Ms. Louey Andrea Alice is the spouse of Mr. Ng Shing Joe
Kester. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Louey Andrea Alice is deemed

to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Ng
Shing Joe Kester is deemed to be interested under the SFO.

4. Mr. Chung Cho Yee, Mico (“Mr. Chung") owns the entire
interest of Digisino Assets Limited (“Digisino”) which in turn
owns the entire interest in Earnest Equity Limited (“Earnest
Equity"). Earnest Equity and Mr. Chung own approximately
47.87% and 0.03% of the entire issued shares capital of CSI
Properties Limited respectively. Therefore, Mr. Chung, Digisino
and Earnest Equity are deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares held by CSI Properties Limited under SFO.

B. CSI Properties Limited is deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares held by Phoenix Year Limited under the SFO.

6. The entire issued share capital of Phoenix Year Limited is
wholly-owned by CSI Properties Limited.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 May 2017 and up to the date of this
report, save as the directorship of Mr. Kan Sze Man, a non-
executive Director, in Surplus King Hotel Enterprises Limited
(a company incorporated in Hong Kong) which is principally
engaged in the operation of a hotel including an all-day dining
restaurant and a bar, the Directors are not aware of any
business or interest of the Directors, the management of the
Company and their respective close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those interests disclosed under the paragraph
entitled “Connected Transactions”, there is no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during
or at the end of the year ended 31 May 2017.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Our Directors confirm that the following transactions will
continually constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Provision of marketing and promotion services to the
Group

Model Genesis International Management Limited (“Model
Genesis"”) has been providing marketing and promotion services
to the Group. On 14 March 2017, Model Genesis has entered
in to a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”) with our
Company, pursuant to which Model Genesis agreed to provide
the marketing and promotion services including organisation
of featured events, engagements of DJs and preparation of
publication materials (the “Marketing and Promotion Services”)
to our Group from the Listing Date to 31 May 2019.

As Model Genesis is owned as to 30% by Phoenix Year Limited
and 70% by Aplus Concepts Limited, being our substantial
shareholder and controlling shareholder, respectively, it is an
associate of each of Aplus Concepts Limited, Mr. Ng Shing
Joe Kester, Phoenix Year Limited and CSI Properties Limited
and a connected person of our Company. The provision of the
Marketing and Promotion Services will constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company pursuant to Rule 20.14
of the GEM Listing Rule.

Under the premise of compliance with the Master Agreement,
our Group and Model Genesis shall further enter into separate
individual contracts or purchase orders in respect of specific
marketing and promotion services and determine the specific
terms and conditions of the marketing and promotion services,
such as services fee to be charged by Model Genesis (the
“Services Fees”).

The services fees would be payable a monthly basis pursuant
to the Master Agreement. The terms and conditions of the
transactions contemplated under the Master Agreement shall
be on normal commercial terms, negotiated on arm’s length
basis, fair and reasonable and no less favorable to our Group
than those offered to other independent third parties for similar
services.

The maximum aggregated annual caps for the transactions are
HK$0.6 million, HK$3.4 million and HK$3.4 million for the three
years ending 31 May 2019, respectively.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 May 2017 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICES

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group had 104 employees. The Directors
and senior management receive compensation in the form of
salaries, benefits in kind and discretionary bonuses with reference
to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
the performance of the Group. The Company also reimburses
them for expenses which are necessarily and reasonably
incurred for the provision of services to the Group or executing
their functions in relation to the operations of the Group. The
Company regularly reviews and determines the remuneration and
compensation package of the Directors and senior management,
by reference to, among other things, market level of salaries paid
by comparable companies, the respective responsibilities of the
Directors and the performance of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 May 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of the Group's business, the majority of
customers consist of retail customers from the general public.
As such, the Directors consider that it is not practicable to
identify the five largest customers of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2017.

The information in respect of the Group's purchases attributable
to the major suppliers for the year end 31 May 2017 as follows:

The largest supplier BAHIER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate T A{LER 485t
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (CONT'D)

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest
in any of the Group's five largest supplier and customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 May 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company
has maintained the sufficient public float under the GEM Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (“Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolutions passed by the Company's
shareholders on 14 March 2017 (“Adoption Date"”) for the
primary purpose of granting options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any employees,
any executive, non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executives Directors), supplier, customer, advisers and
consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (excluding
options lapsed pursuant to the Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company) must not exceed 80,000,000 shares,
representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company at the
date of the annual report.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued to each
eligible participant under the Scheme in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company
unless approved in advance by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D)

Any option to be granted under the Scheme to a Director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
to any of their respective associates must be approved by all
independent non-executive Directors of the Company (excluding
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee). In
addition, any option to be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director of the Company or to
any of their respective associates which will result in the shares
issued and to be issued in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares
or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000
within any 12-month period is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

The offer of a grant of options under the Scheme may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of the offer and by
payment of HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant of an option.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period as to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of
option.

The Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the Listing Date of the Company.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of the offer of grant of an option, which must be
a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant of an option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares.

No options have been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption.
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INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed Lego Corporate Finance Limited
(“Lego”) to be the compliance adviser. Lego, being the sponsor
to the listing, has declared its independence pursuant to Rule
B6A.07 of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as provided for under
the underwriting agreements relating to the share offer, neither
Lego nor any of its associates and none of the directors or
employees of Lego who have been involved in providing advice
to the Company as the sponsor, has or may, as a result of the
share offer, have any interest in any securities of the Company
or any other companies of the Group (including options or rights
to subscribe for such securities).

The compliance adviser's appointment is for a period
commencing on the listing date and ending on the date on
which the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the GEM
Listing Rules in respect of the despatch of its annual report
of the financial results for the second full financial year
commencing after the listing date, i.e. for the year ending
31 May 2019, or until the compliance adviser agreement is
terminated, whichever is earlier.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors of
the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or
an associated company (if made by the Company).

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2017
have been audited by BDO Limited and a resolution for the re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website
of the Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the
website of the Company at www.bcigroup.com.hk.

By order of the Board

Ng Shing Joe Kester
Chairman
18 August 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF BCI GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BCI
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 67
to 126, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 May 2017, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 May 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“"HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

As at 31 May 2017, as a result of the acquisition of Legend
Vision Limited and its subsidiary in 2015, the Group had
goodwill of HK$2,209,000, relating to a cash-generating unit
engaged in the operation of clubbing business in Hong Kong
("Legend Vision CGU").

Management concluded that there is no impairment on
goodwill. This impairment assessment was based on a value in
use calculation that required significant estimations with respect
to the underlying cash flows and discount rate, in particular the
future revenue growth. An independent external valuation was
obtained in respect of the impairment assessment on goodwill
in order to support management’s estimates.

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit matter
because of the significant estimation uncertainty involved in the
determination of the recoverable amount of the Legend Vision
CGU and the significance of the carrying amount of the Legend
Vision CGU (including the allocated goodwill) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and
accounting policy in Note 4(j).

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter:
Our procedures in relation to management’'s impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

Evaluating the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o Assessing the valuation methodology for its appropriateness;

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

o Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness of
these budgets.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company'’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate Number P05443

Hong Kong, 18 August 2017
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Notes 2017 2016
izt 20175 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Revenue W 7 96,164 88,870
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKRA (19,117) (18,172)
Other income and gains H g A R dizs 8 73 557
Property rentals and related expenses MERL RBERY (22,975) (20,919)
Advertising and marketing expenses BERTSHERY (11,915) (11,709)
Employee benefits expenses EERAHAX 9 (18,311) (13,068)
Depreciation nE 9 (4,253) (4,199)
Listing expenses FHRY 9 (15,532) -
Other expenses HfAE (13,064) (10,953)
(Loss)/profit before income tax expenses BRETERAT A (EE) /85 9 (8,930) 10,407
Income tax expense FTSBAx 11 (847) (2,023)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive income R (EE),/ & &
for the year EEBALRE (9,777) 8,384
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive income AT ATEEER(ERE), %
for the year attributable to: FIRZMUALLE -
- Owners of the Company —AREERA (9,513) 8,384
- Non-controlling interests — RS (264) -
(9,777) 8,384
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to RRAEBANEEER
owners of the Company (E518),/ &7
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREECE) 13 (1.51) 1.40
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Notes 2017 2016
MtaF 201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERFE 14 7,405 10,151
Deposits b 15 4,902 5,203
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBEE E 16 1,818 1,440
Goodwill EES 17 2,209 2,209
. 16334 19,003
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 522 354
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H MU GRIE 15 7,680 3,302
Amount due from a related company U EAEE A B1F0R 19 176 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeNIBEEEYD 20 60,672 17,021
.../ B9050 20,677
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B o5 hEMERNFIE 21 15,127 13,953
Amounts due to related parties e~ R RS: 77 70 19 - 9,313
Current tax liabilities BNHATE B & E 1,620 2,253
16,747 25,519
Net current assets/(liabilities) = #BAE (AF)F®E 52308 (4842
Total assets less current liabilities ~ @EERABAH 68637 14,161
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Other payables E e RUR 21 1,290 2,187
Net assets BEE 67,347 11,974
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Notes 2017 2016
Kzt 20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity R
Share capital f& s 23 8,000 —*
Reserves ] 24 59,731 11,974
Equity attributable to owners of the RARER AR
Company 67,731 11,974
Non-controlling interests eI IR = 25 (384) -
Total equity R 67,347 11,974
* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000. * FREEIER,000/8 7T o

On behalf of the board of directors
REES=E

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester
REARE
Director

EE

Ms. Lau Sze Yuen
2 Bzt

Director

EE
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Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAER
Non-
Share Share  Retained controlling
capital  premium*  earnings* Total interests Total
BA  RAEE RERF @i FERER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx TEx TiEx Tix FiEx FiEx
(Note 23)  (Note 24(a)  (Note 24(c)) (Note 25)
(Wi23)  (Wit248)  (Wit24(c) (Hrit25)
At 1 June 2015 201556418 - - 3,590 3,590 - 3,590
Profit and total comprehensive FRENRZAKAEE
income for the year - - 8,384 8,384 - 8,384
At 31 May 2016 and 1 June 2016 2016554318 k201656418 - - 11,974 11,974 - 11,974
Loss and total comprehensive FREBRZAKAEE
income for the year - - (9,513) (9,513) (264) 9,777)
Transactions with owners: BEAANRS :
Shares issued pursuant to the REEEE TR =2
reorganisation e 231 -* 5,100 - 5,100 - 5,100
Capitalisation issue of shares T1n B Al g thiezsm)
Note 231i) 6,000 (6,000) - - - -
Shares issued pursuant to the share  RIERR (DB E B TRk e
offer Mete 231 2,000 66,000 - 68,000 - 68,000
Transaction costs attributable to the ~ FRABE E(E K Hp AR e/
share offer Mete 2 - (8,575) - (8,575) - (8,575)
Disposal of equity interest to a non-  [FFEMEIRIE 4 T & [ iE )
controlling interest /e 2 - - 745 745 (120) 625
8,000 56,525 745 65,270 (120) 65,150
At 31 May 2017 12017454318 8,000 56,525 3,206 67,731 (384) 67,347
* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000. * ERERIER,000/8 T °
# The total of these balances represents “reserves” in the 7 FEREER AR IS E S AR A

consolidated statement of financial position.
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2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHAMERESRE
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense BRATSFIFSZ AT (&18),aF (8,930) 10,407
Adjustments for: LEE -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BENERETE
equipment 4,253 4,199
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WERZED
equipment Wiz - (125)
(4,677) 14,481
Increase in inventories FEEM (168) (75)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 REAM EMIE (M),
receivables Vo (3,904) 117
Increase in trade and other payables 5 N E A R FIBE AN 902 675
Increase in amount due from a related party UK B84 5 FRIELE hiI (176) -
Cash (used in)/generated from operations & (FrH), B8R E (8,023) 15,198
Income tax expenses paid =GRS (1,858) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from KeEES(FTA) FBRESF
operating activites %E ____________________________________ (9.881) 15,198
Cash flows from investing activities RETHMBRERE
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash IREEMT B 2 7] - f0BRATISIR
acquired (Note 22) @(ﬂ/ﬁﬂz/‘ — (1,398)
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE - WEREE
equipment (1,507) (2,823)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, I iEZE - WE REED A
plant and equipment e (173) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant LEYE - WERRERSF
and equipment FRIE - 125
Repayments from related parties R T B K - 6,034
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZE(FAA), FEEEF
investing activities L] (1,680) 1,938
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2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Cash flows from financing activities METBHMERESRE
Repayments to related parties BT (9,313) (2,558)
Issuance of new shares pursuant to the RIR B AR 37T AR (230
reorganisation Note 230)) 5,100 -
Net proceeds from issue of shares upon R DEEREITRG S
share offer Note 23(iii) %ﬁ\lﬁ;%%ﬁ(ﬂfﬁfzﬂm)} 59,425 _
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMETBME (TR REF
financing activities .. B S22 (2558
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HR&RBSEEYHENEE 43,651 14,578
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUNRERELEEY
of the year 17,021 2,443
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the HREERBELZEY
60,672 17,021

year
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GENERAL

BCI Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(as revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Markets (“GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered office is PO Box 1350,
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands and its principal place of business in
Hong Kong is located at Basement, Ho Lee Commercial
Building, No. 38-44 D'Aguilar Street, Central, Hong Kong.
The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group is principally engaged in the operation of clubbing
and catering business in Hong Kong. The Company and
its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1

June 2016
HKFRSs Annual Improvements
(Amendments) 2012-2014 Cycle
Amendments Disclosure Initiative
to HKAS 1
Amendments Clarification of Acceptable
to HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation
HKAS 38 and Amortisation
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate
HKAS 27 Financial Statements
Amendments Investment Entities: Applying

to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs
has no material impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group's consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group's current intention is to apply
these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments Disclosure Initiative’
to HKAS 7
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Amendments Revenue from Contracts with
to HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)?
HKFRS 16 Leases®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018
B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2019

Except as described below, the directors do not
anticipate that the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs will have material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and position and/
or on the disclosures to the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a b-step
approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the
current approach taken under HKFRS. The
standard also significantly enhances the qualitative
and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarification to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included
clarifications on identification of performance
obligations; application of principal versus agent;
licenses of intellectual property; and transition
requirements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

The directors anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on
the amounts reported on revenue as the timing
of revenue recognition may be affected by the
new standard, and more disclosures relating to
revenue is required. Currently, the directors are
in the midst of assessing the financial impact of
the application of HKFRS 15 and a reasonable
estimate of the effect will be available once the
detailed review is completed.

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest
on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also,
the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are
initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made
in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the
lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases
that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases
or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

Total operating lease commitments of the Group in
respect of office premises, clubs and restaurants
as at 31 May 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$33,999,000. The directors anticipate the
adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with the
current accounting policy may affect the Group's
results. The directors anticipate a significant
portion of the lease commitments in the above
amount of HK$33,999,000 will be required to
be recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the "HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousands, except when
otherwise indicated.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Group. Inter-
company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with those
used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree, if any, is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

FTEETEER

(a)

EBEHREEEE

RAMBHRREEANEEOR
BHRE - FEARAEARH R
AERE R R B 3R 0 B 10 A B A
CRELEESES EF KN
RERTEHHE RIEABX

FUBERT - BEN B

7
A e

REARBLHENOHERQF
MEE hRKBRSESE
EHERMECGRERBRM
Bt A BaEMEEEK
mRWMAKE  RFHENEB
NAEM M BHRKRIAEE ST
REAEEEMKBARNE
TR —B

LA = PNCIEE S D
R - WIBRK AR FIERE
E MELXRERAEE(ES
Wi )BT 2 RERNKEE R
ZAVERRBEE - FTRER
BRIBENFIAEABEIZR
WEEAZAFENE - &
) 5% /il P i B 77 2 ez (0
BINKEBE R RAFEERT
B MAEEZWELEER
REBmAHER - AEE A RZ
EXHEEEBNURWET Z
AHEREEREZ A FENRE
L PIETER M E R RRA T
Bt 2 FRIER A - BRIF
BEVBRERNRES —
SFEEE - TRIMAHMIFE
BEmiE A FEFE - TEE
ZW BB ARIIER S -
BITRETAMEENKAR
Rz -



4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (CONT’D)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (@ maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair
value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified
as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such
non-controlling interest's share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The Company
controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceeds the aggregate of the fair
value of consideration paid, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (CONT'D)

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount (see Note 4(j)), and whenever there is an
indication that the cash-generating unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to
each asset will not reduce the individual asset's
carrying amount to below its fair value less cost
of disposal (if measurable) or its value in use
(if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit
or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of property, plant
and equipment includes its purchase price and the
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (CONT'D)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold 20% and the lease term,
improvements whichever is the shorter
Furniture, fixtures 20%

and equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’'s estimated recoverable amount or
if any indication of impairment is identified.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and its
carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss
on disposal.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(e)

Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets
at initial recognition, depending on the
purpose for which the asset was acquired.
The Group's financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchase
or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial
asset under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market.
They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to customers (trade
debtors), and also incorporate other types
of contractual monetary assets. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment
losses. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financial Instruments (CONT’'D)

(e)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

° significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;
o a breach of contract, such as a

default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

o granting concession to a debtor
because of debtor's financial
difficulty; or

o it becoming probable that the debtor

will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.
The carrying amount of financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financial Instruments (CONT’'D)

(e)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade payables, accruals and other
payables and amounts due to related parties
are recognised initially at their fair value,
net of directly attributable transaction costs
incurred are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss. Gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity investment

Equity investments issued by the Company
are recorded of proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(e)

(f)

Financial Instruments (CONT’'D)
(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(vii) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in
the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(g)

(h)

(i)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand, and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Leasing

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over
the term of the lease.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, which it is probable will result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(i)

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (CONT'D)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the assets (other
than inventories and financial assets) to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

)

(k)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) (CONT'D)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset
or cash-generating unit (see Note 4(c)), discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or cash-generating unit.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are
employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end
of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short
term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the
related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(k)

n

Employee benefits (CONT'D)
(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the end
of each reporting period. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable
to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based
on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
currents tax assets or liabilities are recognised as
a component of income tax expenses in profit or
loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the end
of each reporting period between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are for all deductible
temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits, including existing taxable
temporary difference, will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unutilised tax credits can be
utilised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

n

Income taxes (CONT'D)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affect neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
current tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right
to set off the current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
() Income taxes (CONT'D)

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

(m) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(a)  Sales of food and beverages

Revenue from sales of food and beverages
is recognised at the point of sale to
customers.

Prepayments from customers in respect
of the membership schemes operated
by the Group which are considered to be
unearned at the reporting are shown as
receipts in advance in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Revenue is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income based on effective
selling price when the relevant beverages
are sold to customers.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(m)

(n)

Revenue recognition (CONT'D)
(b) Revenue from services

Revenue from services (including tips,
entrance fees, cloakroom fees, photobooth
and event rental income) is recognised
when the services have been provided to
the customers.

(c) Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income is recognised when:

o the promotion events have been
held;
o the services have been rendered,

and it is probable that the
sponsorship income will be granted
and the amount can be measured
reliably.

(d) Management fee income

Management fee income is recognised
when services are rendered.

(e) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company's parent.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(n) Related parties (CONT'D)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)
Related parties (CONT'D)

(n)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if
any of the following conditions apply:
(CONT'D)

(viil A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the group or to the group's
parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or

domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)
(o) Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported to
the executive directors for their decision about
resources allocation to the Group's business
components and for their review of the performance
of those components. The business components
in the internal financial information reported to the
executive directors are determined following the
Group's major product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group use for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except interest income,
unallocated finance costs, and unallocated
corporate expenses, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment, are not included in arriving at
the operating results of the operating segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
disclosed below. The Group based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. However, exiting
circumstances and assumption about future development
may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT'D)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful life and residual value of an
item of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvement in
production, or from a change in market demand for the
products or service output of the asset, expected usage
of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits
on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life
of the asset is based on the experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in similar way. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment loss for trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses of trade and
other receivables resulting from the inability of the
customers and other debtors to make the required
payments in accordance with accounting policy
stated in Note 4(e)(ii). The Group bases the estimates
on the ageing of the receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of the customers and debtors
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher
than estimated.

Impairment loss for non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether non-financial assets suffered any impairment
in accordance with accounting policy stated in Note 4()).
The non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. The determination of recoverable
amount requires an estimation of future cash flows and
the selection of appropriate discount rates. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact on the
carrying value of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future
periods, where applicable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT'D)

Impairment loss for goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

Provision for reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement cost is estimated at the
inception of leasing property with reinstatement clause
and reassessed at the end of each reporting period
with reference to the latest available quotation from
independent contractors. Estimation based on current
market information may vary over time and could differ
from the actual reinstatement cost upon closures or
relocation of existing premises occupied by the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker is defined as
executive directors of the Company. The Group has
identified its operating segment based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the Company's
executive directors for their decisions about resources
allocation and review of performance. For the reporting
period, the executive directors have considered the
only operating segment of the Group is the operation of
clubbing and catering business.

Management determines the Group is domiciled in Hong
Kong, which is the location where the Group principally
operates. All revenue of the Group for the reporting
period was derived in Hong Kong. All its non-current
assets are located in Hong Kong.

In addition, the customers of the Group, based on the
locations at which the services were provided, are all
located in Hong Kong. No revenue from transactions
with a single customer amounts to 10% or more of the
Group's revenue.
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REVENUE 7. Wz

The Group's principal activities are operation of clubs and AEBZ T EXEBRKESAREEE -
restaurants.
Revenue represents the amount received or receivable W e 15 $HE B M ARG AT UK R 3k B W5k
from the sales of food and beverages, entrance fees, H-. ABE BB AREM(BIEN
sponsorship income and others (including tips, cloakroom B . KIEREWA - REBUIAREERS
fees, photobooth and event rental income). WA °
Revenue from the Group's principal activities during the REBERMEHEc E2 X BN
reporting period is as follows: T~
2017 2016
201745 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue from: WA -
Clubs operation SRS
Sales of beverage SHE K 83,553 78,188
Less: Sales discounts B SHEYTH (13,305) (11,568)
70,248 66,620
Entrance fee ANSE 3,463 3,220
Sponsorship income BT A 3,311 1,652
Others HAh 1,455 1,359
78,477 72,851
Restaurants operation BRELE
Sales of food and beverage HERMEA SR 17,615 16,085
Less: Sales discounts B SHESTH (36) (81)
17,579 16,004
Others Hh 108 15
17,687 16,019
Total revenue B 96,164 88,870
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

8. Hitl ARz

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEREFED
equipment Wz - 125
Interest income R BEUA 1 -
Management fee income EEEBPA 72 432
73 557

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9.

(Loss)/profit before income tax expense is arrived at after

BRAT S BB AT (B51R) %R
B TS BB A (K518, R NRR I

charging: TIHEESD
2017 2016
2017F 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R AR S BT SRR
— Clubs operation —ZREE 14,571 13,812
— Restaurants operation —BELE 4,546 4,360
19,117 18,172
Auditors’ remuneration 1% £ B = B 608 107
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BB RERETE
equipment 4,253 4,199
Listing expenses EHAX 15,532 -
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXRA(BIEESEHH)
remuneration) (Note 10) (Hts£10)
- Wages, salaries and other benefits —I% - - HeRkEMBF 17,547 12,613
- Contribution to defined contribution — R FGRIRET B
pension plans 764 555
SRS r1- L. SR 13,068
Minimum lease payments under operating &EHENZELS
leases 20,718 19,482
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 10. EZEMeRIERESFMAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEME

The remunerations of the directors of the AKRAEIEEMSETWOT -
Company are set out below:

Contribution

to defined
Salaries contribution
and other pension
Fees benefits plans Total

REMK

FERHM BRIKETE
ik BA N e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Year ended 31 May 2017 B Z201755831H

HEE
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester RBELTE(RE
(“Kester Ng") Mete ) W) @) 200 96 3 299
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen et i 2B g5 S - (o) - 499 17 516
Non-executive director IHITEE
Mr. Kan Sze Man Note (i) gﬁﬁigﬁymmﬁ 40 _ _ 40
Independent non-executive — BUHHTEE
directors
Mr. Wong Sui Chj Mote (i) Efﬁ@%i@ﬁ%w) 20 _ _ 20
Mr. Li Lap Sun ote i 25 ST 3 S H (ki) 20 _ — 20
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy More (i {fy B 5L 5 4 () 20 - - 20
300 595 20 915
Year ended 31 May 2016 EZ2016%5831H
EEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester REBELE 240 - - 240
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT’'D)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (CONT’D)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Kester Ng was appointed executive director
of the Company upon incorporation.

(ii) On 1 June 2016 and 22 August 2016, Ms. Lau
Sze Yuen and Mr. Kan Sze Man were appointed
executive director and non-executive director of the
Company respectively. During the year ended 31
May 2016, no remuneration was paid or payable to
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen and Mr. Kan Sze Man.

(iii) On 14 March 2017, Mr. Wong Sui Chi, Mr. Li
Lap Sun and Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy were
appointed independent non-executive directors of
the Company.

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals of the Group
during the years ended 31 May 2017 and 2016 did
not include any directors of the Company.

The emoluments paid to the remaining individuals
during the year ended 31 May 2017 are set out
below:

0. EESMERTIEBRESHFMAL

(#8)
(a)

(b)

EEME(H)

et -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

RABE ST A R TR SZ B 1
RERARBRITES -

7201646 A1 H K&201648
A228  2IBmAt kgt
RAEDFEZE AR AT
WITEERIENTES - 8
E2016F5A31H IEFE -
RS o sk e A B B 2 &=
EETREEFERME -

R2017FE3 7148 © &k
S U ERABRE
SEDREZERBEAREE
SIEHITES -

LEEEHFMAL

AN EH £20174 M2016%5
ANNBLFENRE RS
AT P BIEEFAEARFIES °

HE2017F5A31HLEFE « (7
FTHRTALTOBMESEHINWT

2017 2016
2017 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances Fre KoL 2,617 2,299
Contribution to defined contribution  REHFCERET 2R
pension plans 87 71
2,704 2,370
The remuneration fell within the following band: mENHSHELT -
2017 2016
20175 20164
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 5 5
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10.

11.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 10.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT'D)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (CONT’'D)

During the years ended 31 May 2017 and 2016,
no directors or any of the highest paid individuals
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors or any of the highest paid individuals
of the Group as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

(c) The emoluments paid or payable to members
of senior management during the years

EEMERTEESHFMAL
(&)
(b) HEERSHFMAL(E)

H 220174 M2016F5H318 I+
FE  EEXEAZERST M
A R4 DR ok R B AR A (A
o AKEEBMEMAERES
AR 3% 5 = 3 B A = S AT M
& EBIMAREB LN IIAZLR
S EIRA SEE S BER (S o

(c) HZE20175F K%20165F5H831H 1
FE BNRESSREEEN

ended 31 May 2017 and 2016 were within the MEEBEMT :
following band:
2017 2016
20175 20164
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 3 2
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FEFHEX

The Group is subject to income tax on profits arising in
or derived from Hong Kong, being its principal place of
business. The income tax expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

AEEBRNERERMHBTBELN
EBnMBMAER - Re2E R
REVPIISHF SIS -

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current income tax — Hong Kong BIHARR1S T — BB ST
Profits Tax 1,225 2,106
Deferred tax (Mote 10 SRR I M 16) (378) (83)
847 2,023

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Group is not subject to any taxation under
the jurisdictions of the Cayman Islands. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits.

RERSESERLAM - AEEHBEA
RASESRAERSMNEMHEA - &
BRSHIREE BRTUE N E16.5%5t

st
H o
>t

2017 Annual Report 3¢ 103



104

11.

12.

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
(loss)/profit before income tax expense at the statutory
tax rate to the income tax expense at the effective tax
rate is as follows:

11.

FR&BLF X (80

BOREB R EE AR SR A
(B18),afeprEHAx - ERER
MERETEHMMEHRASOEERET

2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

(Loss)/profit before income tax expense B FT SRR S Al (B518),
S A (8,930) 10,407

Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% (2016:  HEATFERK16.5% 2 1B
16.5%) (20164 : 16.5%) (1,473) 1,717
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAMBAZ 2 B2 2,586 64

Tax effect of temporary differences not AERE R MEERR BB

recognised & (311) 208
Others Eh 45 34
Income tax expense PRSI X 847 2,023

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31
May 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2016: nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the
Company (HK$'000)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating
basic (loss)/earnings per share (in
thousands)

(F50)

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic (loss)/earnings per share has been
determined on the assumption that the reorganisation
and the capitalisation issue as described in Note 23 has
been effective on 1 June 2015.

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

12.

13.

BRE

NAREZE2017F6A31H I FE &
MAR AL EIEERESkEs R
B BREBRURIEREZE MM
f% 8. (20164 : &) -

FABREAANELEER(BE) B
gl

ARRGEA AN (ER),
A (FETT)

RN ESRER(ER),/
EF R0 A N T T B

2017 2016
20175 20164

(9,513) 8,384
630,137 600,000

AUTESRER(EER), BR8N ER
ME B Ty REM 23 EE N E
AL BT 201556 A1 8 4 i &
E o



13.

14.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. ZXAREEAEBEESR(ER) B
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (CONT’D) F (&)
The Company did not have any potential dilutive shares R E 220179 %2016F5831H 1F F
for the years ended 31 May 2017 and 2016. Accordingly, EAR - ARaWEAMEEEEE NN
the diluted (loss)/earnings per share are the same as the Bt - Bt - 2 BIE =20175F %2016
basic (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended 31 FoANBLEFESRES(ER) &
May 2017 and 2016, respectively. MEFRER(EE) BFER -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvement equipment vehicle Total
RA£E8
HENELE k& RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Cost: A
At 1 June 2015 201556418 11,683 5,793 408 17,884
Additions NE 1,681 1,242 - 2,823
Disposal HE - - (408) (408)
Acquisition through business BRERA G g H2)
combination e 22 464 144 -
At 31 May 2016 and 1 June 2016 #2016F5A31H K
20166 A 1H 13,728 7,179 - 20,907
Additions NE 950 557 - 1,507
At31 May 2017 ] M2017F6A3NA 14678 776 - 244
Accumulated depreciation: RiE
At 1 June 2015 720156 H1H 4,271 2,286 408 6,965
Charge for the year FRFEH 2,893 1,306 - 4,199
Disposal HE - - (408) (408)
At 31 May 2016 and 1 June 2016 7201655 A31A K&
201646 H1H 7,164 3,692 - 10,756
Charge for the year FAZ N 2,840 1,413 - 4,253
At3T May2017 W2017F5A31A 10004 8005 - 15,009
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 May 2017 7201758318 4,674 2,731 - 7,405
At 31 May 2016 2016554311 6,564 3,687 - 10,151

Leasehold improvement as at 31 May 2017 included
reinstatement provision with carrying amount of

HK$175,000 (2016: HK$382,000).

20175 A3 B EMEREREERR
8175,00058 7T (20164 : 382,000 7T)
RSB -

2017 Annual Report 4%

105



106

15.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15. EZREMEWFIE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 EWGIE 2,995 957
Other receivables Hh U RIR 547 375
Prepayments SEANE e 2,188 1,055
Deposits e 6,852 6,118
Total wET 12,582 8,505
Less: Current portion o BVERES (7,680) (3,302)
Non-current portion FERNHAEL 7> 4,902 5,203

Majority of the Group's revenue is attributable to sales of
food and beverages via cash and credit card. There was
no credit term granted to the customers.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables at
the end of the reporting period, net of impairment, based
on invoice date is as follows:

AEERDZAMARBR S REARX
MR EKBIFEE - AKRELERT
EPEEH -

REBPRREHRNE S EUEIAEN
BRRE)EREZHHMNERER TN
™

2017 2016

20175 2016%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-30 days 0%30H 909 642
31-60 days 31%260H 625 66
61-90 days 61290H 717 103
Over 90 days HBiBI0H 744 146
2,995 957

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
receivables for evidence of impairment on both an
individual and collective basis. Impairment losses in
respect of trade receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly.

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

RBEHR - NEBER & KR e
WHR - WRREAGRETR - 5
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15.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) 15.

The ageing of trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period, net of impairment, which are past due

but not impaired is as follows:

B 5 K H At EWRIR ()

RBEHREBHERREZE FEK
R (FIBRRE) FIBRER G T -

2017 2016
2017F 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Neither past due nor impaired R AR TR AR E - -
Past due but not impaired et/ B g BB R R E
1-30 days past due #HI1E30R 909 642
31-90 days past due BHA31E90H 1,342 169
Over 90 days past due HHAEB B90 H 744 146
2,995 957
Note: Receivables that were past due but not impaired related et EEEERRENRRTRY KA
to a number of customers that have a good track record THRASEERFAEBLBENE
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors B ﬁﬁ%i@&,@%ﬁ" ARBEER
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for RBARLETE \Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ ’
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as AREEEXUESEAEE Mk
there has not been a significant change in credit quality DR AE R B BT - AN SR B 3
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. ?ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ{ﬂﬂﬁﬁucl':iﬁiﬁ%ﬁi
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit Hib(FEIERIEH -
enhancements over these balances.
16. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 16. ELEHREE
Decelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
WERIETE RIEEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
At 1 June 2015 7201556 H1H 290 349 639
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE 79 4 83
Acquisition through business BIBETEE GHUREE
combination Mete 22 #22) - 718 718
At 1 June 2015 and 201556 A1 X
31 May 2016 2016%F5H31H 369 1,071 1,440
Credited/(charge) to profit or loss &t A/ (I B )18
(Note 11) (Hat11) 1,174 (796) 378
At 31 May 2017 201745 H31H 1,543 275 1,818
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16.

17.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (CONT'D) 16. EEFIBEEE(#)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there BRI TR A B HARY 18 & A SR Bl
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets IR B ERE - MELFEESRE
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred — BB R — R E B e
income taxes relate to income tax levied by same S8 BIA] AR AR TE & A BRI R IR
taxation authority on the same taxable entity. BEHREHE -
As at 31 May 2017, the Group has estimated tax MR2017F5H318 - REBEFRER
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$4,104,000 (2016: 7S B TR T 85 18 54,104,000/ 72016
HK$6,160,000), subject to the agreement of Inland % :6,160,0008 L) FHBREE
Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for % - o] AEER AR HEESEE 2 A A
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies RERERTRF) o
in which the losses arose.
GOODWILL 17. B8
HK$'000
FET
At 1 June 2015 201556 H1H -
Acquisition through business combination W22 3% 38 2 754 (3 U B (i22) 2,209
At 31 May 2016, 1 June 2016 and 31 May F2016%5H31H ~ 201656 41 H %2017
2017 F5H31H 2,209

The goodwill was acquired through business combination
during the year ended 31 May 2016 (Note 22) and it is
solely allocated to the cash-generating unit ("CGU"),
namely the Legend Vision Group (as defined in Note 22).

The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been
determined from value in use calculation based on cash
flow projections from formally approved budgets covering
a five-year period. Cash flow beyond five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2%.

Discount rate BHIE &
Operating margin” g lpiepe
Growth rate within the five-year period FFHERE
* defined as profit before income tax expense divided by

revenue

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

B EE2016F5A31THIEFEE B
EBAHFWEME2) EoEER
SEABEM((BEEESEN] - BFEE
RERE(ERE RMF22)) -

7 22 ] R (0] 4 BE AR 15 T 4F HA RS 1E =0 JE L
ETEEMER S REEAE 2 FRE
BET BEAFHZRSRESREE
T2%HEE o

2017 2016
20174 20164
18.1% 16.0%

0.0%-12.7%
0.0%-2.0%

16.5%-16.6%
0.0%-5.0%

-8

R IE A% Bk P15 754 B S g M1 R A MR

i



17.

18.

GOODWILL (CONT'D)

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant CGU. The operating margin
and growth rate within five-year period have been based
on management expectation and the result of the market
research and prediction.

The directors of the Company have considered the impact
of the possible changes in the key assumptions (discount
rate, operating margin and growth rate) used, and
conducted sensitivity analysis on the CGU's carrying value
for impairment testing during the reporting period. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, any reasonably
possible changes in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the CGU's
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

INVENTORIES

Bo

Beverage A

17.

18.

EE ()

PIARRIR R BHAIRAIR R - [RARELFER
ReELBUARZBERR - &27H
EEREAFEIEREIREIE ERMIN KL
MG RIERGEREE

RRAREZDEREMATIEMRKR(FEA
R EENBRRIBERER)ATEEBH
TE  YRHmEHRYReELEUR
HEEETHUREDITARGRE - A2
RESEAR  ATROSBEIERTIER
RETE » ZEBRZEMAEELEE
TeEyReEL B RAERBAIK
BlEH o

78
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
522 354
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19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED PARTIES 19. W (R BB ARE
(a) Amounts due from a related company (a) FEWEEEE LN RKIE
Maximum outstanding
balance during the
year ended 31 May As at 31 May
BZ5ANBLERE
REXE H5A318
Notes 2017 2016 2017 2016
lifa 2017 20165 2017% 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FiEx FEr
Buzz Concepts Group Limited Buzz Concepts Group (1), (i) - 6,609 - -
Limited
Buzz Concepts Management Limited Buzz Concepts Management (1), (i) - 132 - -
Limited

Grand Diamond Limited EEBRAR (i, fii) - 654 - -

Lucky Trend International Limited ~ Z/EBIRER LA (i, fii) - 487 - -

Billion Best Investment Limited KiFRAERAT (i}, (i) - 976 - -

Model Genesis International RERMAMEEERERDE i), (i), (v 275 163 176 -

Management Limited (*Model A(ER7H X))
Genesis”)
Hero Icon Limited Hero Icon Limited i, fiii), (iv) - 7 - -
Digital Option Limited and High Digital Option LimitedeHigh (i}, (iv), (v) - 140 - -
Supreme Limited Supreme Limited
176 -

Notes: Btat

(i) The amount due was non-trade in nature, (i) Eiﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’\i‘% - EIR
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms A R REETEETE -
of repayment.

(ii) The amount due was trade in nature, unsecured, (ii) FIRBEES ’I“E'%-E N3
interest-free and has no fixed terms of A 2ERERTERH -
repayment.

(iii) Mr. Kester Ng, being an executive director of the (iii) $Qﬁ$ﬂ?ﬁf§:%%%ﬁ?ﬁ%i
Company, held beneficial interests in the related BEABARERERA °
company.

(iv) CSI Properties Limited, being one of the ultimate (iv) i\ﬂiﬁmﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&\ﬂ(ﬂi
shareholders of the Company, held beneficial Ra%ﬁ?@?Z*)ﬁE@ st
interests in the related company. NAB=BBA °

(v) CSl| Properties Limited has disposed its interest (V) BEARREWERRATER

in the Company on 31 March 2017. Transactions
with the Company are classified as related party
transactions up to 31 March 2017.

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)
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19.

20.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED PARTIES 19. FEUR ~(FE(T)REES S 7018 (&)
(CONT’'D)
(b)  Amounts due to related parties (b) FEEEH G FIE
Notes 2017 2016
Het 20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Phoenix Year Limited Phoenix Year
Limited (i), (ir) - 2,778
Model Genesis International B 7R B E
Management Limited (“Model BAER AR ([
Genesis") SETRM ) (iii) - 52
Mr. Kester Ng RIBHERE (i) - 6,483
- 9,313

Notes: et -

(i) The amount due was non-trade in nature, (i) ZRARBIIEESEE - EmiK
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms B REEEENRD -
of repayment.

(ii) CSI Properties Limited, being one of the ultimate (ii) BRI E B R A 7 (4
shareholders of the Company, held beneficial DRI EZ —) @
interests in the related company. REIE=HEBA °

(iii) The amount due was trade in nature, unsecured, (iii) FRFBESHMEE - EIK
interest-free and has no fixed terms of . B MERETERS -
repayment. Mr. Kester Ng, being an executive RBEEE(ARRAMITE
director of the Company, held beneficial interests E)EBBMARNESHSA
in the related company. A e

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 200 BREeERREEEY

Cash and cash equivalents represented cash at banks
and in hand. Cash at banks earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

ReMReFEWMRBTLRTFERS
RITE SR EHRITERNRAEEF
B MR ERELAB.
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21.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. ESRHMEMRKIE
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables B SN R 2,885 2,969
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R H AL 508 10,954 9,318
Receipts in advance TEUL FRIE 2,578 3,853
Total 1z 16,417 16,140
Less: Current portion W BVERER (15,127) (13,953)
Non-current portion JERNERER > 1,290 2,187

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables at the
end of the reporting period based on invoice date is as

AEERFERRNBEZBARAERERA
HHRED T T -

follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0-30 days 0ZE30H 1,604 2,834
31-60 days 31260H 1,281 127
Over 60 days HBiB60H - 8
2,885 2,969

Accruals and other payables included provision of

reinstatement and deferred rental expense.

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)
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22.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

22, WHEMBAQTE

On 1 November 2015, the Group acquired 100% of 201511 A1 » AEEWEFIEK B
the equity interests of Legend Vision Limited and its FRATRIMEMB AR (LA THBI B
subsidiary (hereinafter collectively referred as “Legend SED2EHRE - FENEEEZRE
Vision Group”). The principal activity of Legend Vision BIEEEER o IWEE ETIRREL
Group is the operation of clubbing business in Hong BB REIET A S BN SFER -

Kong. The acquisition was made with the objective to
achieve economies of scale and strategically expand the

clubbing business of the Group.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of the WWE S HAEERBERNKEAY
acquiree as at the date of acquisition were: NEENT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB N 608
Inventories rE 84
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 718
Trade receivables, deposits and other B oRKFIA - e &
receivables H A e RIR 1,650
Amounts due from related parties JRE Uk Bt 5 IR 320
Trade and others payables B 5 N EAM BN RUR (2,461)
Amounts due to related parties JE 1<) BB 5 7 IR (1,730)
(811)
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition:  UEEEA IR SR H F 4
Cash and cash equivalents acquired g R e RIEeEEY 402
Consideration paid BERRE (1,800)
(1,398)
Goodwil| Note 17) ?;q%i(ﬁf#s}*m (2,209)
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22.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONT’'D)

The fair value and gross amount of trade and other
receivables amounted to HK$1,650,000. None of these
receivables have been impaired and it is expected that
the full contractual amounts can be collected.

The goodwill of HK$2,209,000, which is not deductible
for tax purposes, comprises the acquired workforce
and the value of expected synergies arising from the
combination of the acquired business with existing
operations of the Group.

Since the acquisition date, Legend Vision Group has
contributed HK$10,103,000 and HK$1,163,000 to the
Group's revenue and profit for the year ended 31 May
2016 respectively. If the acquisition had occurred on 1
June 2015, the Group's revenue and profit for the year
ended 31 May 2016 would have been HK$95,614,000
and HK$8,472,000 respectively. This pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operation of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 June
2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
performance.

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

22.

s s S ) B (48D

B 5 MAMBURFEN A HERBER
1,650,000/ 7T © % 5 & Y TA I 8 R
8- BHEAZURA 28E -

P 222,209,000/ T AT 1L - BLIEFT
B E) R FT B £ S A EEIRE
¥ A BB RSUEEE -

BB B R - FIEKSEBERE £2016
FoA3MBEFE D I RALEE B
I 510,103,000 7T & i F1,163,000
BT o MU R2015E6 A1H 1T
BIZN &£ B & £2016F5A31H L FE
B 4 &= B s ) 9 Bl 495,614,000 JT
18,472,000/ 7T - ZEE ERHEMRH
A R RBRIEE R 2015F6 A1H =
FREVIER T AR B TR AT EBR R E R
AR - MIEE ETRAIRREKRIR -



23.

SHARE CAPITAL

The following changes in the Company’s authorised and
issued share capital took place during the period from 19
May 2016 (date of incorporation) to 31 May 2017.

23. B’
RAAEHR2016FE5 19 (FEft K B
Hi) Z201795 31 B BB HDEE LD
BITRR AN E T -

Number of
shares HK$'000
BB AE FET
Authorised, ordinary shares of SREE0.OTB T EE
HK$0.01 each: ZERK
At 19 May 2016 (date of incorporation), 7201658198 (EMAK
31 May 2016, 1 June 2016 and 7 H Hj) 2016554
31 May 2017 31H 20166 A 1H
201755 A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid, ordinary shares S RE{E0.018 THE 3
of HK$0.01 each: TRBREER :
At 19 May 2016 (date of incorporation), ®201645 198 (7K
31 May 2016 and 1 June 2016 7 HHf) - 2016554
31HX%2016F6A1H 1 —*
Shares issued pursuant to the R E M TR D
reorganisation Mot 9,999 —*
Capitalisation issue credited as fully paid R AR BIRMD HEE AR
on the share premium account of the HEBME®E A1t
Company Note i B (ML) 599,990,000 6,000
Shares issued pursuant to the share offer & & A% 15 % & 3 17 I D
(Note iii) (Kiaiii) 200’000,000 2’000
At 31 May 2017 20175 H31H 800,000,000 8,000

* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000. *

(i) In July 2016, pursuant to the reorganisation in (i)

preparation for the listing of shares of the Company on

the GEM of the Stock Exchange and for the purpose

of rationalising the Group's structure, 6,191, 2,653,
133, 172, 600 and 250 ordinary shares were issued to
Aplus Concept Limited, Phoenix Year Limited, Ethers

Entertainment Limited, Jet Top Investment Limited,

Jubilee Success Investments Limited and Perfect King

Investments Limited respectively.

BREEI 1,000 7T ©

20165 7H - REBEREBAR
AR D FE B R PRI AR 70 ] 45
MAREEzREMETHEAR
% Bl [MAplus Concept Limited
Phoenix Year Limited * Ethers

Entertainment Limited »

LG

& A& PR 2 & - Jubilee Success
Investments Limited X EE2KEH
fR A 7@ % 776,191% « 2,653% -
1330% ~ 1720% - 600% f2500% & i

&
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23. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D) 23. BRA&E)

(ii) On 7 April 2017, the Company capitalised an amount (ii) M2017F4A78  AREHARA
of approximately HK$6,000,000 standing to the credit & 15 74 (B Bk 79 1 AR 88 496,000,0007%8
of share premium account of the Company and the TRTER - LS EEREHMR
said sum was applied in paying up full the 599,990,000 REE EMATRERES 80’
shares issued to the shareholders immediately prior to EE A TR 15 S5 3% 1T #9599,990,000 4% 1%
the listing according to their respective shareholding. 7 o

(iif) On 7 April 2017, the Company listed its shares on (iii) R2017F4778 » "R AR HDE
the Growth Enterprise Market operated by the Stock BERXFTEENBIER LT LS
Exchange with public offer shares of 200,000,000 at an RARD0.34B T BITEAREE
issue price of HK$0.34 per share. The transaction costs 200,000,0008% A% (5 ° B 1D EEFTHELS
attributable to issue of shares amounted to HK$8,575,000. TS 58,675,000 7T °

24. RESERVES 24. f#fE

Details of the movements on the Group's reserves are RAEBERBEDFBEHANGEERED

set out in the consolidated statement of changes in xe

equity.

Movements on the Company's reserves are as follows: RREREEEENT

Share Capital Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total

1R E RAGE R ER oy

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET
Loss and total comprehensive 201654198 (A
income for the period M EE)ZE2016%5A
from 19 May 2016 (date of JIHBREEREH

incorporation) to 31 May 2016 WA a5 - - —* -

At 31 May 2016 and 1 June 2016 2016F5A31B %

20166418 - - - -

Arising on reorganisation ERREE - 34 - 34

Shares issued pursuant to the RIEEABITRHWE

reorganisation ete 231 230)) 5,100 - - 5,100

Capitalisation issue of shares B 10 & 2L B 1 T(izs0)

(Note 23ii) (6,000) - - (6,000)

Shares issued pursuant to the RERNFEEEITRG

share offer (Nete 231 #231i) 66,000 - - 66,000

Transaction costs attributable to B IDEEEELZ ZAAR

the share offer Mete 23(i) £251ii) (8,575) - - (8,575)
Loss and total comprehensive FREBEZEKRA

income for the year i - - (15,153) (15,153)
At 31 May 2017 7201758318 56,525 34 (15,153) 41,406

*

The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000.
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24.

25.

RESERVES (CONT'D)
(a) Share premium

Share premium represented the amount subscribed
for share capital in excess of nominal value.

(b) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between
the fair value of the consideration paid and the
carrying value of the subsidiaries acquired.

(c) Retained earnings/accumulated losses

Retained earnings/accumulated losses represented
the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in
profit or loss.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

On 31 August 2016, 2 shares, representing 40% equity
interests of City Silver Limited (“City Silver”), were
issued to an independent third party at a consideration of
HK$625,000, which was settled by offsetting the same
amount due to the independent third party.

24.

25.

fit e (&)
(a) REEE

B tn g (B 45 R BB XA & JRiR
HEfE

(b) BAfHE
BRAFEHEEESNKERAFER
WM E AR REEZEN
EH o

(c) REBEERF RFEE
REBAF Rt EBEENER
R Rt e S & 18 e

IR RS

20168 A31H » MBI FH = FH %
77 t8 & MCity Silver Limited([City
Silver])40% % # - X & /&625,000/%
JC - EEMNIBY = RRS BN FUE
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26.

COMMITMENTS 26. &IE
(a)  Operating commitments (a) EERE
The Group leased its office premise, clubs and AEERBEEHEZHBSR
restaurants under operating lease arrangements ZHERTHERREME -2
with third party landlords. Leases for these Pk ER  REBREHENTF—
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from B
one to three years:
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Not later than one year BB —F 19,707 20,993
Later than one year but not later —F A BTN BBRRF
than five years 14,292 29,896
33,999 50,889

(b)

In addition, the operating leases for two
restaurants of the Group are based on the
restaurants’ respective revenue pursuant to the
terms and conditions as set out in the respective
agreements. As future revenue of restaurants
could not be reliably determined, the relevant
contingent payments have not been included
in above table and only the minimum lease
commitments have been included.

Capital commitments

At the reporting date, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

Commitments for the acquisition of:
Property, Plant and equipment

(b)

BRABEA T SRR RS
ERR S

ItE AN - AR 4% 48 8 175 & O 16K Ko
fFRiF AEBEMFRERNZE
MEREBWEE REE
)R SR U a5 O AT SE AT B 0 B
BRI W RABKATA
EFF RRIEHEEALE -

BRI
RIS H - R E & A K
T

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
115 -
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27.

HOLDING COMPANY
FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF

27. ERABMBARRER

Notes 2017 2016
Hta 201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary  BERMERE 4 .
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b e WA 947 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B~ R 5B 1,469 —*
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 57,084 -
e ._........995800 -
Current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables H T FUR 3,333 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR NGRS 6,721 —*
Current tax liabilities BIHARIE & (& 74
... Y028 -
Netcurrentassets = #"BEER® 493712 o
Net assets FEE 49,406 —*
Equity s
Share capital AR 23 8,000 —*
Reserves ] 24 41,406 —*
Total equity B 49,406 —*
* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000. * BREEIER,000/8 7T ©

On behalf of the board of directors

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester

REBATE
Director

5=

REREFE

Ms. Lau Sze Yuen

BRmLt

Director

=
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28.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following are the details of the Group's subsidiaries

at 31 May 2017:

Name

L

BCI Group Holdings (BVI)
Limited

BCI Group Enterprises
Limited

Group Best Investment
Holdings Limited

Legend Vision Limited
MK AR AR

Bannock Holdings Limited

Buzz Concepts Management
(H.K.) Limited

Lively World Limited

Group Best Investment
Limited
HEREBRAR

Grand Diamond Limited

EEARAA

28.

Country and date of Issued and

incorporation/establishment paid up share

and form of business structure capital

HMARY/KIBARR A S BRIR

FBERRA HRRE

The British Virgin Islands (the "BVI"), USs$10
6 February 2013, limited liability
company

EERAEHS((EBRLRS]) 10%7T
201352760 * ARAA

Hong Kong, 28 November 2012, HK$1
limited liability company

i 20126117288 18T
BB Q7]

The BVI, 26 April 2013, limited US$10,000
liability company

RERAEE 2013544268 10,000% 7
2] NG

Hong Kong, 8 April 2015, limited HK$1
liability company

& - 201554780 - BRAA BT

The BVI, 4 February 2014, limited US$1
liability company

KBREIES  201452A4R (B
BRAT

Hong Kong, 17 February 2014, HKS$1
limited liability company

BB 201452178 - ERATF iy

The BVI, 2 January 2015, limited US$1
liability company

RBEAES 201551828 (E
BB Q7

Hong Kong, 9 July 2004, limited HK$100,000
liability company

B 200457798 - BRAF 100,000/ T

Hong Kong, 13 February 2008, HK$2,030,750
limited liability company

B 2008527130 - BRAR 2,030,750 7T

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

B 8

NEFE

REBME A RIN2017F5 831 HHY
BT

Attributable
equity interest

Direct

EE

100%

100%

(L R AE
Indirect

ke

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal activities
and place of
operations
TEEBR
B

Investment holding,
Hong Kong

RERE &4

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REER - BE

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REER B

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REER B

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REER B

Provision of public
relations services,
Hong Kong

RUNERE - B4

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REZR - BE

Operation of club,
Hong Kong
meen &8

Operation of club,
Hong Kong
e &%



28.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’'D)

Name

L

Litton Global Limited

Joint Ace Limited

Crown Grand Limited

City Silver Limited

Ace Gain Limited

28.

Country and date of Issued and

incorporation/establishment paid up share

and form of business structure capital

SR/ KIERK BHE BRIR

$BEBKL HRBRAE

The BVI, 4 February 2014, limited US$1
liability company

RBELHES 201452848 - BR (Ep
N

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015, limited HK$1
liability company

% - 2015534180 - ERAAF BT

Hong Kong, 20 November 2014, HK$1
limited liability company

B 20145118208 - BRATF BT

Hong Kong, 12 October 2013, HK$625,003
limited liability company

B 2013F10A128 - BRAR 625,003%7C

Hong Kong, 5 May 2016, limited HKS$1
liability company

% - 201655458 - BRAA BT

B B A RIS ()

Attributable
equity interest

FEAL B RE
Direct Indirect
EE Bz

- 100%

— 100%

- 100%

— 100%

- 100%

— 100%

- 60%

— 60%

- 100%

— 100%

Principal activities

and place of
operations

IRRBR
EESUE

Trademark holding,

Hong Kong
BEER B

Operation of
restaurant,
Hong Kong

BEEE B

Operation of
restaurant,
Hong Kong

KEEB BA

Operation of
restaurant,
Hong Kong

REEE B

Not yet commenced

business

HARRES
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Related party transactions

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

29.

BEBARS
(a) BEBLIXE
Brir e MR B o P i

financial statements, the Group had the following FRE N - AN B R A B R
material transactions with related parties during FETUTEARRS :
the year:
Related party identity Type of transactions Notes 2017 2016
o)y gy RHRE Wit 20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Digital Option Limited and High Rental expenses
Supreme Limited MERMZ (i) ~ (i) ~ (iii) 1,273 1,472
Digital Option Limited & High
Supreme Limited
Capital Delight Limited Rental expenses (1) ~ (ir) 19 110
BERBRAT HEMY
Model Genesis Marketing and promotion fee (i) * (i) ~ (iv) 2,372 3,403
RS SRR HHRIEEE
Model Genesis Management income (i) 72 432
BRI BIEA
Notes: Htet -

(i) The transactions were conducted at terms and
conditions mutually agreed between the relevant
parties. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that those related party transactions
were conducted in the normal ordinary course of
business of the Group.

(ii) CSI Properties Limited, being one of the ultimate
shareholders of the Company, held beneficial
interests in the related company.

(iii) CSI Properties Limited has disposed its interest
in the Company on 31 March 2017. Transactions
with the Company are classified as related party
transactions up to 31 March 2017.

(iv) Mr. Kester Ng, being an executive director of the
Company, held beneficial interests in the related
company.

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

() RBBEAWE AL RE
BB BT o AR
EERARSUR RS
RAKEAHEBBEE
7o

(ii) BEARKHEMWERR AR (A
RAREBREZ —) BE
RNABEREBA -

(iii) BRI ERRARER
2017F3A3TEHEHERA
NAEREmE o B E201743
A318  BARRNRZ S
DEABH RS -

(iv) ARBRITEERMALE
REABAREEHEBEA -



29.

30.

31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D) 29. BEEAXRZ (&)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEEASNHH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REBWNEZERBABHFHM(A
Group, excluding amounts paid to the directors of the BERKF10@EENES H AR
Company as disclosed in Note 10(a), is as follows: NAIEEFIB)MAT

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ « 2R EYEF 1,455 797

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN 30. EZERXS - ZEHREHNNEXE

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR =

CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated financial BRézE B R M sT20FT R BE & 4

statements, no contracts of significance to which the R B FEERS R AT EERE

Company'’s subsidiaries was a party and in which a director HMEEEYERESBEEREAQ TN

of the Company or an entity connected with a Director had BARIFFINMWEES TR HEEERRE

a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted Frndld

during or at the end of the financial year.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 31. ®REJESWNEREERMKER

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY B=E

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated HREVBRAREREYMEREESEN TS

statements of financial position relate to the following MEEMVEEEERNER -

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities.
2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables: B R EWFIE
Trade receivables, deposits and other B HRWFIE - EE &
receivables H A FERIR 10,221 7,450
Amounts due from a related company JE s BE B » B 5K IR 176 -
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSEEY 60,672 17,021
71,069 24,471
Financial liabilities mBaE
Measured at amortised cost: REHK AT E
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENRIE 13,839 12,287
Amounts due to related parties JE A< B U5 k1B - 9,313
13,839 21,600
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32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial assets that derive directly from
its operations are trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from related companies and
cash and cash equivalents. Principal financial liabilities of
the Group include trade and other payables, and amounts
due to related parties. The main purpose of these

financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’'s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group does not enter into or trade financial

instruments for speculative purposes.

The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to
ensure that adequate resources are available to manage

the above risks and to create value for its shareholders.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the

Group.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed
to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
trade payables, accruals and other payables,
and amounts due to related parties, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group's
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of
liquid assets to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
banks and financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer terms.

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

32.

PR EE
AEHEREREZENTREERES
FEWFR - e R EMEYFIR - B
B ARFTIEARRE S MRS EEY -
AEETEMHAERRESI REMBE
S FRIREA K A BRBSE 77 500 © SR F RS
BEIEA/AEERHEEES -

AeREERTAELNEERRAE
Rk - RBETRARRFEERE o &
SEWEITUHEE SR T AAERBE
R -

AEENMBRREEBR S EERE
FEERAIBRNER Filt R - IR
REEEIE -

(a) fFERR
EERRESZRIAHFIR
EREBTANKRETE
T EYARKEREMEER
Z BB o

(b) FEBHESEAR
REE SRR S RANEEKEE
BOUVBEGEHBETOR
e AEEEHEREEES
ERISRIE - Bt ERAREMAE
NRIE - ENEBSRERE
CHREEENRBESAR -
REBEEERBFBEERDEE
KFE - BUm R BB R REAR
BESHE K-

AREHREATHERER
RESMRBASEL  BRE
eE BRI £3- 25
ReBEEIEHERBAR
B URRESRESHRD
CEE RS



32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D) 32. HEEKREEGE)
(b)  Liquidity risk (CONT'D) (b) REBESRRGE)
The liquidity policies have been followed by the HZE2017%F 20165 A31 8 IE
Group during the year ended 31 May 2017 and FE  AEBETRBESH
2016 and are considered to have been effective in K BRBDESRBRERTZ
managing liquidity risks. B
The following table details the Group's remaining TRHFLEAEETBAEBENTE
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. HELNH  TERBEVBEE
The table has been drawn up based on the HARBRBEERE(ERREE
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities AMROREEERY - Hi
based on the earliest date on which the Group can FOTEBEENIHA A
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other RIBTEERBE - TREABF
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on BRAEBERE - WFER
the agreed repayment dates. The table includes BEE AR ESEZRRS
both interest and principal cash flows. To the HARH N G E o
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rates at the end of the reporting period.
Total More than
contractual Within one  one year but
Carrying undiscounted year or on less than two
amount cash flow demand years
ENRER —FR% BA-F
REE ReRELE REX BORME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 May 2017 2017558310
Trade and other payables B %R EMEMFE 13,839 13,839 12,539 1,290
At 31 May 2016 R201655A318
Trade and other payables BHREMENHIE 12,287 12,287 10,100 2,187
Amounts due to related JE s 7 58
parties 9,313 9,313 9,313 -
Trade and other payables B R E M EM A 21,600 21,600 19,413 2,187
(¢) Interest rate risk () FIZEER

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's bank deposits bear floating
interest rates. The Group has no cash flow or fair
value interest rate risk as there are no borrowings
which bear fixed or floating interest rates.

MEREEEEETAERFE
FBEERERAT SN EEFHM
KEBRREE - NEBMIRITE
FIFHFEAE - HRAE
B 3 AR B E T B A KA R
M ER - RASEY ER SR
ERAFEMERER o
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33.

34.

35.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objective when managing capital is
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and maximising the return to stakeholders.
The Group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed by the directors of the Company. The Group is
not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
To maintain or adjust capital structure, the Group may
adjust dividend payment to shareholders or issue new
shares. Adjustments will be made to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Company or its subsidiaries, and the risk characteristics
of the Group's underlying assets. During the reporting
period, the Group defines “Capital” as including all
components of equity.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

On 31 May 2016, the Group entered into agreements
with Mr. Kester Ng and Phoenix Year Limited that
amounts due to them of HK$2,992,000 and HK$140,000,
respectively were settled through transfer of amounts
due from certain related companies with an aggregate
balance of HK$3,132,000.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on
18 August 2017.

BCI Group Holdings Limited mPI%E B R A &)

33.

34.

35.

BEXREE

AEBERETEMNTIERNZRERE
ERFECEENERERERRNE
o ARREFTERRILEEAEH
BARE - NEEBAETINGHINE
REKX - RERHHHEEARE - KF
B & RHERBR AT S EITH
o BARZRIEAR FH FER B AR B S EM
BRREEMN RN EE M AKEREE
EMNRERERMARE - RI|EHRE - K
SEGEXIRERBSMBREEN

1/'\ °

FEIRERS

M2016F5A31H » A& EHE R EHE
% 4 K Phoenix Year Limiteds] 37 13
% 0 B R 4B AE 5L & K Phoenix Year
Limited% 512,992,000/ 7t X 140,000
BITR AR REEELCE T AR
FRIAXBEES, 132,000/ L4505 ©

ZAEMERE
BEE2eN2017F8 18 B LR T
BIR B MIEHE -



A summary of the results and of the liabilities of the Group for
the last three year financial years, as extracted from the audited

ATRAEERSE =AM RFENEENE

BEME - JHREE ANFRANEEZ

A

consolidated financial statements in this annual report and the #REKLBRERE :
prospectus, is set out below:
RESULT ES
Year ended 31 May
BE5A31ALEE
2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20175 2016%F 2015%F
FET FET FET
Revenue Wz 96,164 88,870 67,387
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEXA (19,117) (18,172) (13,300)
Other income and gains H YA Bz 73 557 432
Property rentals and related YIRS RABRAX
expenses (22,975) (20,919) (16,066)
Advertising and marketing expenses [E& & HISHER X (11,915) (11,709) (11,278)
Employee benefits expenses EEEARZ (18,311) (13,068) (7,656)
Depreciation e (4,253) (4,199) (3,472)
Listing expenses EHAX (15,532) - -
Other expenses R (13,064) (10,953) (7,478)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax bR FT1S B SZ A
expense (E18), &7 (8,930) 10,407 8,569
Income tax expenses FriS Bl (847) (2,023) (1,470)
(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive FR(E18), % &2
income for the year [ NCEE (9,777) 8,384 7,099
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive LA ALFERGFR
income for the year attributable (BB, = REH
to: WA #EE -
— Owners of the Company e YNGIE 2N (9,513) 8,384 7,099
- Non-controlling interests —IEIE e R s (264) - -
(9,777) 8,384 7,099
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHERE
Year ended 31 May

HBZE5A31BLEE
2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20174 20164 20154
FET FEL FET
Total assets BEE 85,384 39,680 30,014
Total liabilities wEE (18,037) (27,7086) (26,424)
Total equity e 67,347 11,974 3,590
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